








This page left intentionally blank.



CONTENTS

COMPANY INFORMATION

Company Profile

Company Information

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Directors’ Report
Directors’ Report (Urdu)

UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent Auditor’'s Review Report to the Members

Condensed Interim Unconsolidated Statement of Financial Position
Condensed Interim Unconsolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
other Comprehensive Income

Condensed Interim Unconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Condensed Interim Unconsolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Condensed Interim Unconsolidated Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Condensed Interim Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Condensed Interim Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
other Comprehensive Income

Condensed Interim Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Condensed Interim Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

05
07

13
16

24
25

26
27
28
29

58

59
60
61
62



COMPANY PROFILE

Incorporated in 1983 as a steel line pipe manufacturer, Crescent Steel has grown into a

diversified conglomerate, listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange, with business units

across four key sectors: engineering, textiles, capital markets, and power. Our operations

are spread across four campuses in Sindh and Punjab, with headquarters in Karachi and

a registered and liaison office in Lahore.

STEEL DIVISION — SPIRAL PIPE
PRODUCTION LINE, PIPE
COATINGS AND FABRICATION

The Steel Division operates three plants across
two campuses, a Pipe Manufacturing and Coating
Plant in Nooriabad, Sindh and, a Machinery
Fabrication Plant (Shakarganj Engineering) in
Dalowal, Punjab. The pipe plant operates two
Spiral Pipe (SP) production lines, specializing in
large-diameter spiral submerged arc welded steel
line pipes. The Coating Plant applies flow-efficient
and anticorrosion, external and internal pipe
coatings on steel line pipes. The unit is also
capable of applying weight coatings. Shakarganj
Engineering fabricates machinery and equipment
for the Sugar, Cement, Power and Engineering
industries, including our own manufacturing units.

The Spiral Pipe (SP) Plant has the capability of
manufacturing high-quality steel pipes in the
diameter range of 8 inches =120 inches (219 mm —
3,048 mm) with wall thickness up to 25 mm and
material grades up to API 5L X-100. The unit’s pipe
production capacity is 200,000 MT per annum.

The notional annual capacity for production based
on a single shift of eight hours is 66,700 MT of bare
pipe per annum. Both SP lines are capable of
operating for 24 hours at an annual plant capacity
of 200,000 MT per annum. The notional pipe size
is taken as a diameter size of 30 inches with 12
inch thickness for SP-1600 and a diameter of 40
inches with 58 inch thickness for SP-2003.

External coatings include Multi-Layer Polyolefin
and Polypropylene Coating, Single layer Fusion

Bonded Epoxy Coating, Tape Coating, and Liquid
Epoxy Coating while internal coatings include Anti-
Corrosion Epoxy Coatings, Flow Efficiency Coating
(FEC) and Cement Lining.

We carry the capability to coat steel line pipes
ranging from 4 inches — 84 inches (114 mm -2,134
mm), tape coatings on pipe diameters above 60
inches (1,524 mm) and internal epoxy coatings on
diameters ranging from 8 inches — 60 inches (219
mm — 1,524 mm).

The annual notional capacity of the plant works
out to 600,000 square meters based on 14-inch
diameter pipes operating single Ten-hour shifts.

Our new Cement Mortar Lining (CML) setup is
now up and running-marking a big step forward in
how we maintain and protect our water pipelines.
This system applies to an even layer of cement
mortar inside pipes, helping to prevent corrosion,
improve flow efficiency, and extend the life of our
infrastructure. With automated application tools,
high-capacity mixers, and controlled curing
chambers, the setup is built for consistent
performance and long-term reliability. It also
supports our sustainability efforts by reducing the
use of chemicals and lowering maintenance needs
over time.

The fabrication unit has the capability to fabricate
and erect reliable, quality machinery at par with
international standards and designs, especially for
the sugar and cement industry. The unit
specializes in the manufacture and supply of cane
shredders, juice heaters, evaporators, batch and
continuous vacuum pans, centrifugal machines,
stainless steel deep bed filters, spray clusters,
multi-jet condensers, perforated plates, vibrio
screens and high voltage transformer tanks.



The unit also has the capability to fabricate and
erect machinery used in the secondary steel sector
and it was leveraged for partial fabrication of a
continuous caster machine structure, girders for
overhead cranes and a vibratory scrap feeder for
the billet manufacturing units of the steel industry.

COTTON DIVISION — COTTON
YARN SPINNING UNIT —
Discontinued Operations

The Cotton Division comprises of one spinning unit
with 19,680 spindles and is located in Jaranwala.
The unit operating as “Crescent Cotton Products”
(CCP), has a daily production capacity of 385 bags
of high quality cotton/synthetic carded yarn, in
counts ranging from 10s to 31s.

CCP is a division of the company but its operating
results are shown separately. As a division, it is
registered with the Ministry of Textile Industry
Pakistan and All Pakistan Textile Mills Association
(APTMA). It produces quality cotton/synthetic
yarn with value addition of slub, siro and compact
attachments.

CCP is equipped with modern high-tech European
and Japanese machinery ensuring a high-quality
yarn making process, producing various counts
from 10s to 31s and has a notional capacity (based
on 20s) of 6.36 million kilograms per annum.

The brand is known for its high quality and hence
demands a premium.

INVESTMENT AND
INFRASTRUCTURE
DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

The division manages an investment portfolio in
securities (shares, bonds and other securities),
across diversified sectors and investment
properties in order to meet specified investment
goals at a given risk appetite, to maximize returns.

The portfolio is balanced in a way that spreads risk
over a diversified spectrum and offers potential for
growth as well as dividend yields, while real estate

investments are held for rental as well as long term
appreciation.

CS ENERGY DIVISION

The primary function of this unit is to provide
electricity internally to Crescent Hadeed Division -
Billet  Manufacturing Unit and  generate,
accumulate, distribute, sell and supply electricity
to distribution companies, as permitted.

Initially equipped with a 15MW co-generation,
thermal generation power plant at Bhone, Punjab,
the unit commenced commercial operations in
December 2014. The unit also employs a 16.5MW
condensing and extraction turbine to process
steam during off-season periods to ensure
uninterrupted supply to Crescent Hadeed Division
throughout the year. The generation plant uses
bagasse in the combustion process to produce
power and process steam.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

CS CAPITAL (PRIVATE) LIMITED

CS Capital (Private) Limited is a fully owned
subsidiary of Crescent Steel. The principal activity
of the subsidiary is to manage and organically
grow investment portfolios in stocks, commodities,
and other securities, both strategic and short term.

SOLUTION DE ENERGY (PRIVATE)
LIMITED

Solution de Energy which was previously operating
as a fully owned subsidiary of CS Energy (Private)
Limited, now operates as a fully owned subsidiary
of Crescent Steel, post amalgamation of CS Energy
(Private) Limited and Crescent Steel.

The company was incorporated in October 2013,
its principal activity being to build, own, operate
and maintain a 100 MW solar power project.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Board of Directors are pleased to submit their report, together with Un-audited

condensed interim unconsolidated and consolidated financial statements of the Company
and the Group for the half year ended December 31, 2025.

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

Pakistan is in a stabilization phase and gradual
recovery is on the horizon, with real GDP growth
projected around 3.2% (2026), however, this
remains sensitive to reform continuity and external
financing conditions.

Rebounding LSM alongside easing inflationary and
FX pressures in the short term remain key drivers,
while constrained fiscal space, future debt
servicing obligations and external financing needs
will continue to present downside risks.

For Crescent Steel, improved macros, particularly
fiscal consolidation and key sectoral reforms could
translate into higher government spending on
infrastructure projects and trigger demand for line
pipe and coating applications.

MARKET OUTLOOK

H1FY26 was an extension of the FY25 momentum
supported primarily by domestic liquidity and
improving macros. The KSE100 index gained 38.6%
during the half year (CY25: 51.2%). Performance
remained strong despite moderated gains when
compared to H1IFY25 (46.8%), on the back of strong
liquidity and attractive valuations.

Over the last three years the KSE100 has delivered
gains of 330.6% (CY23:54.3%, CY24:84.3%,
CY25:51.1%) re-rating from multiples as low as 3x
to 8x, bringing valuations near historical averages.
At current levels, the next sustained leg will depend
more on earnings delivery and macro stability than
on a broad re-rating.

The KSE-100 Index is currently trading at a P/E of
9.3x (forward: 8.2x) and a P/B of 1.56x, still at a
discount to regional peers (14.2x). However,
valuations have now crossed Pakistan’s long term
averages (10-year average P/E and P/B at ~7.9x
and 1.29x, respectively). Market leverage has also

risen; leverage-to-all-share market capitalization
stands at 0.55%, above the 3-year and 10-year
averages of 0.34% and 0.40%, respectively.
Consequently, incremental upside is likely to be
more earnings-driven and selective, rather than
fueled by multiple expansion.

FINANCIAL  AND
PERFORMANCE

OPERATIONAL

Overall Unconsolidated
Financial Performance

During the half year ended December 31, 2025
(H1FY26), the Company’s after-tax profit
amounted to Rs. 679.7 million as compared to after
tax profit of Rs. 673.0 million in H1FY25. Earnings
per share (EPS) for HIFY26 were Rs. 8.76 per share
as compared to EPS of Rs. 8.67 in HIFY25.

Sales revenue for the HIFY26 stood at Rs. 3,712.3
million (H1FY25: Rs. 3,111.9 million). Cost of Goods
sold stood at Rs. 2,780.7 million (H1FY25: Rs.
2,343.5) generating a Gross Profit (GP) of Rs. 931.6
million (H1FY25 GP of Rs. 768.4 million) which was
25.1 percent of sales as compared to a GP margin
of 24.7 percent in HIFY25.

The Company’s PBT for HIFY26 from continuing
operations stood at Rs. 931.5 million as compared
to a PBT of Rs. 954.8 million in HIFY25.

Income tax charge from continuing operations
during H1IFY26 amounted to Rs. 271.0 million - this
includes current tax, prior year reversal and
deferred tax charge of Rs. 66.5 million, Rs. 9.8
million and Rs. 214.3 million, respectively. EPS from
continuing operations stood at Rs. 8.51 (H1FY25:
Rs. 9.15).
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Summary of operating results as per

unconsolidated condensed interim financial

statements of the company

e Sales revenue increased 19.3% to Rs. 3,712.3
million as compared to Rs. 3,111.9 million in
H1FY25.

e Income from Investments amounted to Rs.
472.0 million as compared to Rs. 600.3 million
in HIFY25.

e Gross profit of Rs. 931.6 million as compared to
a GP of Rs. 768.4 million in H1FY25.

e Profit before interest and tax (PBIT) for
H1FY26 was Rs. 1,023.9 million as compared to
PBIT Rs. 1,111.1 million in H1FY25.

o Profit before interest, tax, depreciation, and
amortization (EBITDA) was Rs. 1,178.0 million
as compared to EBITDA of Rs. 1,243.3 million in
H1FY25.

e EPS for HIFY26 was Rs. 8.76, as compared to
EPS of Rs. 8.67 for H1IFY25.

e Return on average capital employed
(annualized) was 12.9 percent for H1IFY25 as
compared to 13.4 percent in corresponding
period last year.

BUSINESS DIVISIONS

Steel Division: Line Pipe Manufacturing
and Coating Applications

During H1FY26, Steel Division revenue amounted
to Rs. 3,701.9 million (H1FY25: Rs. 3,111.4 million)
with a GP of Rs. 993.5 million (H1FY25: GP of Rs.
831.8 million). The Steel Division reported profit
before tax (PBT) of Rs. 545.3 million (H1FY25 PBT:
Rs. 436.5 million).

Major orders executed in the period included 31
KM of 40-inch diameter externally 3LPE coated and
internally cement lined steel line pipes for the
Wajihar-Thar water pipeline project. Additionally,
we supplied 18.6 KM of 12-inch Diameter Coated
Steel Line Pipes and 162 KM of 3LPE coating only
on 4-inch, 6-inch and 8-inch client supplied pipes.

[ID: Portfolio Investments

During the half year, the division’s trading
investments  (excluding  strategic  holdings)
recorded a positive ROl of 30.9% on weighted
average investments of Rs. 1,303.3 million.

The portfolio’s accumulated PBT for the half year
stood at Rs. 445.2 million, against the PBT of Rs.
586.5 million in the corresponding period last year.
The PBT includes unrealised gains of Rs. 349.3
million, realized gains of Rs. 53.1 million. Dividend
income for the period stood at Rs. 67.6 million.

Cotton Division and CS Energy

The Cotton Division operations remained
suspended during HIFY26 and the division
consequently reported LBT of Rs. 27.6 million.

The CS Energy Division was not operational during
H1FY26 and reported LBT of Rs. 31.3 million
primarily on account of fixed costs incurred during
the period, including depreciation and amortization
expense of Rs. 29.9 million.

During the half year, profit from discontinued
operations stood at Rs. 60.1 million (H1FY25: LBT
of Rs. 37.3 million) representing the gain on
disposal of held for sale assets amounting to Rs.
69.6 million. Income tax charge on discontinued
operations during Q1FY26 was Rs. 40.8 million;
consequently, EPS from discontinued operations
stood at Re. 0.25 as compared to LPS of Re. 0.48
for same period last year.

UNCONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Balance sheet footing stood at Rs. 11,863.4 million
as of December 31, 2025, compared to Rs 15,919.8
million on June 30, 2025. Break-up value per share
increased to Rs. 119.0 from Rs. 112.8 as at June 30,
2025.

The current ratio increased to 3.11, as compared to
1.63 as at June 30, 2025. Gearing ratio (including
short-term borrowings) decreased to 3.8 percent as
compared to 22.4 percent as at June 30, 2025.
Interest cover for Q1FY26 was 11.1 times (H1FY25:
7.1 times).
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Overall Consolidated
Financial Performance

On a consolidated basis, operating profit from
continuing operations before interest and tax
amounted to Rs. 1,254.5 million (H1IFY25: Loss of
Rs. 254.1 million) mainly driven by investment
income of Rs. 706.9 million. Consolidated profit
after tax for the Group for HIFY26 was Rs. 839.9
million as compared to profit after tax of Rs. 14.5
million in H1IFY25.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

On a Group basis, the consolidated balance sheet
footing stood at Rs. 11,972.3 million, compared to
Rs. 15,6561.0 million as at June 30, 2025. Total
shareholders’ funds increased to Rs. 9,081.6 million
from Rs. 8,407.3 million as at June 30, 2025.

Events after the Reporting Period

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on
February 4, 2026 has approved interim cash
dividend of Rs. 2 per share for the year ending June
30, 2026.

As disclosed in note 28.1 to condensed interim
unconsolidated financial statements, after the
reporting period, the Board of Directors approved
the discontinuation of Cotton Division operations;
the unit has been idling with suspended operations
since March 2023. Consequently, the Board of
Directors has approved transfer of the plant
property as “Investment Property” to the IID
Division real estate portfolio.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The domestic operating environment has improved
with increased political and economic stability and
greater ease of doing business; however, we expect
that development expenditure in the current fiscal
to remain subdued; this will directly impact new
projects in the oil and gas transmission pipeline
sector. In contrast the water sector remains active
and our participation in the K-1V Project positions
us well to capture future business in this segment,
especially as new projects are emulating the
specifications adopted for the K-1V Project. In the
coming years we expect that the water sector will

pivot to API steel pipes with external and internal
linings.

Global commodity markets have been largely
stable; however, the ongoing conflict in the Middle
East, coupled with stimulus measures announced
by the Government of China may disrupt markets.
Conflict risks in the region could disrupt oil markets
and freight, particularly for goods originating from
the West. The engineering sector is especially
vulnerable to such challenges as critical raw
materials, consumables and spares are largely
imported, and the sector is deeply linked with
infrastructure development which require fiscal
space.

During Q3FY26, we plan to conclude balance
quantities against our in-process order from
Wajihar-Thar water pipeline project for 40-inch
diameter pipes.

Our order book includes bare pipe orders of ~170
Km totaling PKR 3.86 billion; of this ~90% will be
executed and billed in the current FY, while the
balance shall carry forward to Q1FY27.

There is continuing line pipe demand in the oil, gas
and water segments for which bidding and awards
are expected to take place over the next six months
and Alhamdolillah Crescent Steel is well positioned
to capture this wallet.

| would like to thank all stakeholders for their
patronage and look forward to their continued
support.

For and behalf of the Board of Directors.

M NW_&@}//

Ahsan M. Saleem Nadeem Magbool
Chief Executive Officer

February 4, 2026
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pWeC  AFFERGUSON&CO.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT
To the members of Crescent Steel and Allied Products Limited
Report on review of Condensed Interim Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying condensed interim unconsolidated statement of financial position
of Crescent Steel and Allied Products Limited as at December 31, 2025 and the related condensed
interim unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, condensed interim
unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the condensed interim unconsolidated statement of
cash flows and notes to the financial statements for the six months period then ended (here-in-after
referred to as the "condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements"). Management is
responsible for the preparation and presentation of these condensed interim unconsolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim
financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on these condensed interim
unconsolidated financial statements based on our review.

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements 2410,
“Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity”. A
review of the condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements consists of making inquiries,
primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and
other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that
we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we
do not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying
condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements are not prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial
reporting.

Other matter

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 237 (1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2017, only cumulative figures
for the six months, presented in the second quarter accounts are subject to a limited scope review by
the statutory auditors of the Company. Accordingly, the figures of the condensed interim
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the three months period
ended December 31, 2025 and December 31, 2024 have not been reviewed by us.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Osama Moon.
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CRESCENT STEEL AND ALLIED PRODUCTS LIMITED
CONDENSED INTERIM UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (UNAUDITED)
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2025

Note
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Investment properties

Long term investments 6
Long term deposits

Deferred taxation - net

Current assets

Stores, spares and loose tools

Stock-in-trade 7
Trade debts 8
Loans and advances 9
Trade deposits and short term prepayments

Short term investments 10
Other receivables 11

Taxation - net
Cash and bank balances

Non-current assets held for sale 12
Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital and reserves

Authorized capital
100,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Capital reserve
Revenue reserves

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities

Long term loans 13
Lease liabilities

Deferred income

Deferred taxation - net

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 14
Unclaimed dividend

Mark-up accrued

Short term borrowings 16
Current portion of long term loans 13
Current portion of lease liabilities

Current portion of deferred income

Total liabilities

Contingencies and commitments 16
Total equity and liabilities

Unaudited Audited
December 31, June 30,
2025 2025

S| - TP 11, P —

1,980,913 1,999,071
154,513 178,578
111,370 112,804

2,287,464 2,239,541

74,367 70,798
5 85,265

4,608,627 4,686,057
441,641 384,837

1,467,488 2,983,801

1,163,535 1,641,032
125,086 310,808

22,766 19,166

2,339,102 1,537,401

1,040,890 3,461,381
256,707 406,233

54,682 74,586

6,911,897 10,819,335
342,919 414,384

7,254,316 11,233,719

11,863,443 15,919,776

1,000,000 1,000,000
776,325 776,325

1,020,908 1,020,908

7,442,166 6,954,534

9,239,399 8,751,767

18,431 132,289
138,426 157,781
2,492 2,763
129,077 .
288,426 292,833

1,970,744 4,551,503 |

150,729 111,697

7,644 27,284
162,339 1,964,959
3,655 174,469
39,970 44,727
537 537
2,335,618 6.875176
2,624,044 7,168,009
11,863,443 15,919,776

%I’ he annexed notes from 1 to 28 form an integral part of these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.
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CRESCENT STEEL AND ALLIED PRODUCTS LIMITED

CONDENSED INTERIM UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (UNAUDITED)

FOR THE THREE MONTHS AND SIX MONTHS PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2025

Three months period ended Six months period ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2025 2024 2025 2024
Note (Rupees in '000)
Sales 2,869,186 2,317,056 4,377,491 3,667,936
Less: Sales tax 437,637 350,946 665,149 556,004
17 2,431,549 1,966,110 3,712,342 3,111,932
Cost of sales 1,907,726 1,438,173 2,780,700 2,343,526
Gross profit 523,823 527,937 931,642 768,406
Income from investments -~ net 18 93,942 585,533 471,950 600,337
617,765 1,113,470 1,403,592 1,368,743
Distribution and selling expenses 9,658 8,418 18,057 15,707
Administrative expenses 221,729 142,716 348,715 231,211
Other operating expenses 19 36,428 33,728 57,756 43,524
267,815 184,862 424,528 290,442
349,950 928,608 979,064 1,078,301
Other income 34,384 16,254 44878 32,830
Operating profit before finance costs 384,334 944 862 1,023,942 1,111,131
Finance costs 20 27,455 93,752 92,481 156,290
Profit before taxation from continuing operations 356,879 851,110 931,461 954,841
Taxation
- Current for the period (31,409) (130,072) (66,544) (114,759)
- Prior year 9,788 100,986 9,788 100,986
- Deferred (81,531) (226,713) (214,290) (230,820)
(103,152) (255,799) (271,046) (244,593)
Net profit after taxation from continuing operations 253,727 595,311 660,415 710,248
Net (loss) / profit from discontinued operation (4,945) (18,290) 19,318 (37,262)
Net profit after taxation for the period 248,782 577,021 679,733 672,986
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss
Changes in the fair value of equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 2,003 1,287 1,980 614
Total comprehensive income for the period 250,785 578,308 681,713 673,600
(Rupees)
Basic and diluted earnings per share 21 3.20 7.43 8.76 8.67
Basic and diluted earnings per share - continuing operations 21 3.27 7.67 8.51 9:15

The annexed notes from 1 to 28 form an integral part of these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.

Chief Executive 7 Director e Chief Financial Officer
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CRESCENT STEEL AND ALLIED PRODUCTS LIMITED

CONDENSED INTERIM UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (UNAUDITED)

FOR THE SIX MONTHS PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2025

Issued, Capital reserve Revenue reserves Total Total
subscribed Share Fair value General  Unappropriated ~ revenue
and paid-up  premium reserve reserve profit reserves
capital
(Rupees in '000)

Balance as at July 1, 2024 776,325 1,020,908 1,837 3,642,000 2,274,979 5,918,816 7,716,049
Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit after taxation for the period - - - - 672,986 672,986 672,986
Other comprehensive income for the period - - 614 - - 614 614
Total comprehensive income for the period - - 614 - 672,986 673,600 673,600
Transaction with owners of the Company -

distribution
- Final dividend @ 35% (i.e. Rs. 3.50 per share) for

the year ended June 30, 2024 - - - - (271,714) (271,714) (271,714)
Balance as at December 31, 2024 776,325 1,020,908 2,451 3,642,000 2,676,251 6,320,702 8,117,935
Balance as at July 1, 2025 776,325 1,020,908 7,208 3,642,000 3,305,326 6,954,534 8,751,767
Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit after taxation for the period - - - - 679,733 679,733 679,733
Other comprehensive income for the period - - 1,980 - - 1,980 1,980
Total comprehensive income for the period - - 1,980 - 679,733 681,713 681,713
Transaction with owners of the Company -

distribution
- Final dividend @ 25% (i.e. Rs. 2.50 per share) for

the year ended June 30, 2025 - - - - (194,081) (194,081) (194,081)
Transfer to general reserve - - - 3,000,000 (3,000,000) - -
Balance as at December 31, 2025 776,325 1,020,908 9,188 6,642,000 790,978 7,442,166 9,239,399

The annexed notes from 1 to 28 form an integral part of these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.
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CRESCENT STEEL AND ALLIED PRODUCTS LIMITED
CONDENSED INTERIM UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2025

Six months period ended

December 31, December 31,
2025 2024
Note ~ --—-——--- (Rupees in '000) ---------
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from / (used in) operations 22 2,673,423 (756,279)
Taxes refund / (paid) - net 51,994 (200,724)
Finance costs paid (100,568) (129,099)
Contribution to staff retirement benefits (21,794) (13,481)
Contribution to Workers' Welfare Fund (12,024) (19,016)
Contribution to Workers' Profit Participation Fund (38,114) (91,876)
Long term deposits - net (2,183) 1,864
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 2,550,734 (1,208,611)
Cash flows from investing activities
Capital expenditure (115,848) (305,240)
Proceeds from disposal of non current assets held for sale 140,910 >
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets 24,044 1,689
Investments - net (420,416) (490,773)
Dividend income received 67,628 373,816
Interest income received 11,050 15,164
Net cash used in investing activities (292,632) (405,344)
Cash flows from financing activities
(Repayments of) / proceeds from long term loans - net (284,672) 16,348
Payments against finance lease obligations - net (35,665) (49,723)
(Repayments of) / proceeds from short term loans - net (1,260,958) 1,256,818
Dividends paid (155,049) (216,040)
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (1,736,344) 1,007,403
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 521,758 (606,552)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period (525,531) 402,979
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 23 (3,773) (203,573)

The annexed notes from 1 to 28 form an integral part of these condensed interim unconsolidated financial

% statements.
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CRESCENT STEEL AND ALLIED PRODUCTS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2025

1.
1.1

1.2

13

1.4

1.5

2.2

23

24

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Crescent Steel and Allied Products Limited ("the Company") was incorporated on August 1, 1983 as a
public limited company in Pakistan under the Companies Act, 1913 (now the Companies Act, 2017) ("the
Act’) and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The registered office of the Company is located at E-
floor, IT Tower, 73-E/1, Hali Road, Gulberg-lll, Lahore, whereas its principal office is situated at Sth floor,
Sidco Avenue Centre, 264 R.A. Lines, Karachi.

The Company operates four segments namely Steel, Cotton, Investment and Infrastructure Development
(IID) and Energy. Further, the Company's Hadeed (Billet) segment has been classified as discontinued
operation as disclosed in note 24 to these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.

These condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements of the Company are the separate financial
statements of the Company in which investments in subsidiaries and an associate have been accounted
for at cost less accumulated impairment, if any.

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on February 4, 2026 has approved an interim cash dividend of
Rs. 2 per share for the year ending June 30, 2026. These condensed interim unconsolidated financial
statements do not reflect the effect of the interim cash dividend payable as approved by the Board of
Directors.

The Board of Directors of the Company, in its meeting held on February 4, 2026, has resolved to
discontinue the Cotton segment as part of the Company's strategic realignment. The Cotton segment will
cease to be part of the Company's continuing operations and it will be presented as a “discontinued
operation” for reporting purposes.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial
reporting, which comprise of:

- International Accounting Standard, 'Interim Financial Reporting' (IAS 34), issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act); and
- Provisions of, directives and notifications issued under the Act.

Where the provisions of, directives and notifications issued under the the Act differ with the requirements
of IAS 34, the provisions of, directives and notifications issued under the Act have been followed.

These condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements of the Company do not include all the
information and disclosures required in the annual unconsolidated financial statements, and should be
read in conjunction with the annual audited unconsolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended June 30, 2025. However, selected explanatory notes are included in these condensed interim
unconsolidated financial statements to explain events and transactions that are significant to an
understanding of the changes in the Company’s financial position and performance since the last annual
audited unconsolidated financial statements.

The figures included in the condensed interim unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the three months period ended December 31, 2025 and December 31, 2024
and the notes forming part thereof have not been reviewed by the auditors of the Company, as they have
reviewed the accumulated figures for the six months period ended December 31, 2025.

These condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees which
is also the Company's functional currency and all financial information presented has been rounded off to
the nearest thousand rupees, except otherwise stated.
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3.1

3.2

3.21

3.2.2

4.1

4.2

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The accounting policies and the methods of computation adopted in the preparation of these condensed
interim unconsolidated financial statements are consistent with those applied in the preparation of the
annual audited unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2025.

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO
PUBLISHED ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS

There were certain amendments to published accounting and reporting standards that were mandatory
for the financial year that began on July 1, 2025. These are considered not to have any significant effect
on the Company's financial reporting and operations and are therefore, not disclosed in these condensed
interim unconsolidated financial statements.

There are certain new standards and amendments that will be applicable to the Company for its annual
periods beginning on or after July 1, 2026. The new standards include IFRS 18 Presentation and
Disclosure in Financial Statements and IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures
both with applicability date of January 1, 2027. The overall amendments include those made to iIFRS 7
and IFRS 8 which clarify the date of recognition and derecognition of a financial asset or financial liability
which are applicable effective July 1, 2026 to the Company. The Company's management at present is in
the process of assessing the full impacts of these new standards and the amendments to IFRS 7 and
IFRS 9 and is expecting to complete the assessment in due course.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements requires management
to make estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the application of Company's accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may
differ from these estimates, judgments and assumptions.

Estimates and judgements made by management in the preparation of these condensed interim
unconsolidated financial statements are the same as those applied in the annual audited unconsolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2025.

Unaudited Audited
December 31, June 30,
2025 2025
Note =weneewn= (Rupees in '000) -—-=eanm
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating fixed assets 5.1 1,864,298 1,929,642
Capital work-in-progress 52 116,615 69,429
1,980,913 1,999,071
Right-of-use-assets 154,513 178,578

% 2,135,426 2,177,648

30



ionnionad

mamminta o

Sppommacporas

bttt

IR

51

5.2

Following are the cost of operating fixed assets added and disposed off during the six months period ended:

Unaudited

Six months period ended
December 31, 2025

Unaudited
Six months period ended
December 31, 2024

Additions Disposals Additions Disposals
(cost) {cost)
(Rupees in "000)

L.easehold land 1,950 - - -

Buildings on freehold fand 5,929 - - -

Plant and machinery 23,467 56,831 2,700 -

Electrical / office equipment and

installation 2,255 - 2,605 310

Computers 4,484 212 1,924 -
Motor vehicles 30,069 15,157 21,185 3422
68,154 72,200 28,424 3,732

Additions to capital work-in-progress during the six months period ended December 31, 2025 amounted to
Rs. 78.16 million netted off with transfers of Rs. 30.95 million (December 31, 2024: additions and transfers of

Rs. 276.82 million and Rs. 17.85 million respectively).

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

Subsidiary companies - at cost
Associated company - at cost
Other long term investments

4

Unaudited Audited
December 31, June 30,
2025 2025

Note -~—-—— (Rupees in '000}) -
8.1 905,001 905,001
6.2 691,106 691,106
8.3 691,357 643,434
2,287,464 2,239,541
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6.1

6.11

6.1.2

6.1.3

6.2

6.2.1

Subsidiary companies - at cost

Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
December 31, June 30, December 31, June 30,
2025 2025 2025 2025
----- (Number of shares) ------ Note -——--- (Rupees in'000) ~~---—
70,500,000 70,500,000 CS Capital (Private) Limited 8.1.1 705,000 705,000
(Chief Executive Officer -
Ms. Hajerah Ahsan Saleem)
2 2 Crescent Continental Gas Pipelines
Lirnited {US $ 1 each) 6.1.2 - -
20,000,100 20,000,100 Solution de Energy (Private) Limited 6.1.3 200,001 200,001
(Chief Executive Officer -

Mr. Muhammad Saad Thaniana)

905,001 905,001

This represents the Company's investment in 100% ordinary shares of CS Capital (Private} Limited. The
Company acquired CS Capital (Private} Limited on September 26, 2011.

This represents investment in subsidiary of Rs. 90 only. The subsidiary company has not commenced
operation and accordingly no financial statements have been prepared.

This represents the Company's investment in 100% ordinary shares of Solution de Energy {Private) Limited
that was acquired through amalgamation on June 30, 2018.

Associated company - at cost

Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
December 31, June 30, December 31, June 30, 2025
2025 2025 2025
--= (Number of shares) ---- Note -——-{Rupees in '000) —---u--
Quoted
27,409,075 27,409,075 Shakarganj Limited 6.2.1 691,106 691,106
{Chief Executive Officer -

Mr. Muhammad Saif Ullah)

The Compary holds 21.93% (June 30, 2025: 21.93%) shareholding in Shakarganj Limited (SL) and there is
no common directorship in the investee company. However, the Company directly and / or indirectly has
significant influence as per requirement of IAS 28. Accordingly, the Company has accounted for investment

H’@g in SL as 'Investment in Associates’.
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6.2.3 The fair value of investment in associated company as at December 31, 2025 amounted to Rs. 3,083.52

million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 1,872.86 million).
Unaudited Audited
December 31, June 30,
2025 2025
Note ~------- (Rupees in '000) --~--~

6.3 Other long term investments
Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 8.3.1 15,579 13,545
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 6.3.2&6.3.3 675,778 629,885

691,357 643,434

6.3.1 This represents investment in 'The Crescent Textile Mills Limited® and the Company has irrevocably
designated at initial application of IFRS 9 to recognize in this category. This is strategic investment and
management considers this classification to be more relevant. The accumulated fair value reserve related to
this investment will never be reclassified to profit or loss.

6.3.2 This includes investments in Crescent Industrial Chemicals Limited and Crescent Bahuman Limited
amounting to Rs. 10.470 million and Rs. 24.037 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 10.470 million and Rs. 24.037
million), respectively, which had been fully charged to profit or loss in earlier periods.

6.3.3 This also include investment in Shakarganj Food Products Limited and Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited amounting to Rs. 263.52 million and Rs. 412.25 million {(June 30, 2025: Rs. 313.48 million
and Rs 316.40 million) respectively.

Unaudited Audited
December 31,

7. STOCK-IN-TRADE 2025 June 30, 2025
Note  —-ere- (Rupees in "000) -—----

Raw materials
Hot rolled steet coils (HR Coils) 274,816 1,713,626
Coating materials 122,918 311,976
Steel scrap 2,327 2,327
Raw cotton 86,460 100,206
Stock-in-transit - 25913
Cthers 324,052 353,078
810,573 2,507,126
Work-in-process 204,956 57,023
Finished goods - net 7.1 451,883 398,907
Scrap / cotton waste 76 20,745
656,915 476,675
% 1,467,488 2,983,801
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8.1

Stock in trade as at December 31, 2025 includes certain items valued at net realisable value (NRV).
Charge in respect of stock written down to NRV amounting to Rs.12.05 million {December 31, 2024: Rs.
6.26 million) and has been recognized in cost of sales.

Unaudited Audited
December 31, June 30, 2025
2025
Note wununams (RUpees in "000) -=~-—-
TRADE DEBTS
Secured
Considered good - 196,540
Unsecured
Considered good 8.1 1,163,535 1,444,492
Considered doubtful 27,529 27,529
1,191,064 1,472,021
Impairment loss on trade debts (27,529) (27,529)
1,163,535 1,641,032

This includes amount due from Pak Elektron Limited (a related party) amounting to Rs. 24.78 million
(June 30, 2025: Rs. 23.47 million).

Unaudited Audited
December 31, June 30, 2025
Note — -—--eeee- (Rupees in '000) ~-------—-
LOANS AND ADVANCES
Unsecured
Loan to related party - considered good
Solution de Energy (Private) Limited 9.1 4,285 2,672
Advances - considered good
Executives and Staff 245 123
Suppliers for goods and services 65,710 44,654
Contract cost 46,773 261,880
Others 8,073 1,559
Advances - considered doubtfu!
Suppliers for goods and services 47 47
Provision for doubtful advances {47) (47)

% 125,086 310,858
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1.

The Company has provided short term interest bearing loan to the wholly owned subsidiary Company in
order to meet its requirements for the purposes of feasibility, legal approvals and other related activities in
respect of its project of 100 MW Solar Power Plant in Solar Power Park being established by the
Government of Punjab in the Cholistan desert. The Company charged interest amounting to Rs. 0.23
million (December 31, 2024: Rs. 0.15 million} at the average rate of horrowing.

Unaudited Audited
December 31, June 30,
2025 2025
Note ~  -—-———==- (Rupees in '000} ~w=smmmm-
SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
At amoriized cost 10.1 94,000 87,000
At fair value through profit or foss (FVTPL) 10.2 & 10.3 2,245,102 1,450,401
2,339,102 1,637,401

This represents investments in fixed deposit receipts carrying markup of 8.40% to 9.54% (December 31,
2024: 9.67% to 18%) per annum maturing upto December 11, 2026.

This represents investments in ordinary shares of listed companies and units of mutual funds.

Investments having an aggregate market value of Rs. 184.40 milion (June 30, 2025: Rs. 1,285.62 miliion}
have been pledged with financial institutions as security against financing facilities (refer note 15.5) out of
which amount of Rs. 15.58 milfion (June 30, 2025: Rs. 184.88 million) relates to long term investments.

Unaudited Audited
December 31, June 30,
2025 2025
Note aernennm= (RUPEES N 000} =ormmemmmr
OTHER RECEIVABLES
Dividend receivable 886 946
Provision there against {886) (886)
- 60
Receivable against sale of investments 11,316 36,110
Claim receivable 661 461
Due from related parties 11.1 7,163 6,004
Sales tax refundable 302,036 689,894
Margin on letters of credit - 3,471
Margin on letters of guarantee 401,730 2,411,491
Receivable from staff retirement benefits funds 316,610 312,797
Others 1,374 1,093

% 1,040,890 3,461,381
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12.
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Due from related parties:

CS Capital {Private) Limited
Solution de Energy (Private) Limited
The Crescent Textile Mills Limited
Shakarganj Food Products Limited
Premier Insurance Limited

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Unaudited
December 31,
2025

Audited
June 30,
2025

S | TS T1) ) J—

6,853 4,298
124 2
186 571

. 1,079
- 54
7,163 6,004

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on October 3, 2024 had approved the disposal of plant and
machinery and certain other related assets of Hadeed (Billet) Segment. Consequently, the operation of
Hadeed (Billet) Segment has been classified as discontinued operation in note 24. During the period,
assets having carrying amount of Rs. 71.47 million have been disposed off resulting in a gain of Rs. 68.45
million, which is presented in the results of discontinued operation. The buyer shall complete the

purchase of all assets in due course.

LONG TERM LOANS
Secured - Undet shariah arrangement

Sukuk Certificates 13.1
Less: Transaction cost 13.1.1

Secured - Under non-shariah arrangement
JS Bank Limited 13.2
Allied Bank Limited 13.3

Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities

"o

Unaudited
December 31,
2025

Audited
June 30,
2025

wmmwmmm— (RUPEES in '000) —--uesee--

- 133,333
- (517)
- 132,816
22,086 23,942
- 150,000
22,086 306,758
(3,655) (174,469)
18,431 132,289
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13.1

13.1.1

13.2

13.3

14,

The Company issued 8,000 unlisted, privately placed and secured Sukuk certificates (SUKUK-Al-Istisna),
having face value of Rs. 100,000 each, amounting to Rs. 800 million. The Sukuk certificates carried profit at
the rate of 6-months KIBOR + 2% per annum with semi-annual rental payments having tenure of three years
from the issue date on arrear basis. During the period, the Company has paid the remaining principal amount
of Rs. 133.333 million and profit on such arrangement was 14.09% (December 31, 2024: 16.68% to 23.73%)
per annum.

This represented the unamortized portion of cost incurred with respect to issuance of Sukuk cedificates,
amortized using effective interest rate.

The Company entered into a loan arangement with JS Bank Limited in which 5 tranches were received. The
tranches were converted into the State Bank of Pakistan's (SBP) “SBP Financing scheme for Renewable
Energy”. The term of the loan is 10 years from the date of disbursement with a grace period of 3 months,
repayable in monthly installments starting from June 2021. Mark-up was payable quarterly at the rate of 1
month KIBOR plus 1% per annum up till approval of refinance from the SBP and after approval, mark-up is
payable at the concessional rafe of 6% per annum.

The effective interest on such arrangement is 8.47% to 11.35% (December 31, 2024: 8.47% to 11.35%) per
annum.

The Company entered info a loan arrangement with Allied Bank Limited for a term of 3 years with a grace
period of 1 year. The principal amount of loan was repayable quarterly starting from March 31, 2026. Mark-up
was payable quarterly at the rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 1.5% per annum. During the period, the Company
has paid off entire amount of loan and interest rate charged on such arrangement was 12.63% (December
31, 2024: 13.68%) per annum.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Unaudited Audited
December 31, June 30,
2025 2025

Note remeees (RUpEES iN '000) =rmrmmee

Trade creditors 87,321 131,596
Bills payabie 38 38
Commission payable 459 385
Accrued liabilities 558,520 666,451
Contract liabilities 423,848 2,907,252
Deposits 297,096 250,000
Infrastructure fee, sales tax and damages 403,565 394 984
Due to related parties 14.1 25,444 24,380
Payable to provident fund 3,853 232
Contribution payable to staff retirement benefit funds 4,769 -
Retention money 2,507 2,256
Withholding tax payable 8,828 5,243
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 31,437 41,213
Workers' Welfare Fund 30,586 33,879
Others 92,473 93,594
1,970,744 4,551,503

W,
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Unaudited Audited
December 31, June 30,
2025 2025
Note — -—eeseee- (Rupees in '000) --=-=--~-
Due to related parties
Premier Insurance Limited 72 -
Shakarganj Food Products Limited 91 -
Shakarganj Limited 25,281 24,380
25,444 24,380
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Secured from banking companies
Running finances under mark-up arrangements 15.1 58,455 600,117
Short term loans 15.2&15.4 103,884 1,364,842

162,339 1,964,959

Short term running finance / money market facilites are available from conventional side of vanous
commercial banks under mark-up arrangements amounting to Rs. 200 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 950 million)
out of which Rs. 350 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 300 million), Rs. 100 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 100 million)
and Rs. 350 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 800 million) are interchangeable with letier of credit, letter of
guarantee facility and short term loan, respectively. During the period, mark-up on such arrangements ranged
from 12.82% to 13.64% (December 31, 2024: 13.96% to 23.73%) per annum.

Short term loan available from various commercial banks under mark-up arrangements amounting to Rs.
6,515 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 6,565 million) out of which Rs. 3,615 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 2,900
million), Rs. 300 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 300 million) and Rs. 350 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 400 million}
are interchangeable with letter of credit, lefter of guarantee and running finance facility, respectively. During
the period, the mark-up on such arrangements ranged from 12.53% to 13.60% (December 31, 2024: 15.05%
to 23.71%) per annum.

The facilities for opening letter of credit amounting to Rs. 6,000 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 6,050 million) out
of which Rs. 965 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 765 million), Rs. 3,000 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 4,200 million)
and Rs. 300 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 200 million) are interchangeable with short term running finance,
short term foans and letter of guarantee respectively as mentioned in notes 15.1 and 15.2 above. The facility
for lefter of guarantee as at December 31, 2025 amounted to Rs. 4,281.5 million (June 30, 2025: Rs.
4,597.30 milfion). Amounts unutilized for letters of credit and guarantees as at December 31, 2025 were Rs.
5,505.8 million and Rs. 3,118.4 miliion (June 30, 2025: Rs, 4,486.71 million and Rs. 895.54 million},
respectively.

This includes an amount of Rs. Nil (June 30, 2025: Rs. 147.84 million) outstanding against Islamic mode of
financing.

The above facilities are expiting on various dates with maturity period upto March 31, 2026, These facilities
are secured by way of mortgage of land and building, hypothecation of plant and machinery, stock-in-trade,
trade debts and other current assets, pledge of shares (refer note 11.3), and lien over import / export
documents. Further, these facilities (refer notes 15.1 to 15.3) are also secured against pledge of shares
amounting to Rs. 527.97 milfion owned by CS Capital (Private) Limited (subsidiary company).
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CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

There is no significant change in the status of the matters as set out in notes 15, 28.2 and 29.1 to the
Company's annual audited unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2025, except for
the matter disclosed in 29.1 (i) to the June 30, 2025 financial statements, against which no additional provision
is required to be recorded.

Commitments

Aggregate amount of guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the Company against various contracts
aggregated to Rs. 1,463 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 3,701.80 million). These include guarantees issued by
Islamic banks amounting to Rs. 50.18 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 50.18 mitlion}.

Commitments in respect of capital expenditure contracted for as at December 31, 2025 amounted to Rs.
667.31 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. Nil).

Commitments under letters of credit as at December 31, 2025 amounted to Rs. 594.16 million (June 30, 2023:
Rs.1,563.29 million).

SALES
Unaudited Unaudited
Three months period ended Six months period ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, December
2025 2024 2025 31,2024
Note (Rupees in "000)
Local sales
Bare pipes 1,788,299 1,324,607 2,521,849 1,806,593
Pipe coating 226,654 - 619,589 -
Coated pipes 17.1 660,898 925,741 977,030 1,760,665
Cotton yarn / raw cotton - 623 12,339 623
Others 179,508 40,820 216,020 68,182
Scrap / waste 13,827 25,265 30,664 31,873
2,869,186 2,317,056 4,377,491 3,667,936
Sales tax (437,637) (350,946) (665,149) (556,004)
2,431,549 1,966,110 3,712,342 3,111,932

This includes revenue amounting to Rs. 20.2 million for the six months period ended December 31, 2025
(December 31, 2024: Rs. 1,760.70 million), where HRC (Hot Rolled Coil) was supplied by the customer.

Reverue is disaggregated by major products and also by geographical market. Additionally, revenue by major

P(gustomers is disclosed in note 24.4 to these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.
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18. INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS - NET
Unaudited Unaudited
Three months period ended Six months period ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, December
2025 2024 2025 31, 2024
Note {Rupees in '000)
Dividend income 18.1 53,740 376,782 67,568 385,691
Realized gain on sale of
FVTPL investments - net 18.2 24,170 12,227 53,129 12,289
Unrealized gain on
FVTPL investments - net 18.3 14,943 195,613 349,253 200,535
Rental income from investment
properties 18.5 1,089 911 2,000 1,822
93,942 585,533 471,950 600,337
181  This includes Rs. 38.70 million (December 31, 2024: Rs. 12.6 million) earned on investments in Shariah
compliant investee companies.
18.2  This includes gain of Rs. 38.44 million (December 31, 2024: Rs. 9.9 million) on sale of shares of Shariah
compliant investee companies.
18.3  This includes unrealized gain of Rs. 293.28 million (December 31, 2024: Rs. 77.40 million) on investments in
Shariah compliant investee companies.
18.4 Income from investment was categorized as Shariah / Non-Shariah compiiant investee companies on the basis
of All Shares islamic Index as circulated by the Pakistan Stock Exchange.
18.5  Direct operating expenses incurred against rental income from investment properties amounted to Rs. 2.33
million (December 31, 2024: Rs. 0.75 million).
19. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Unaudited Unaudited
Three months period ended  Six months period ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, December
2025 2024 2025 31, 2024
{Rupees in '000)
Exchange (gain) / loss (298) 295 - 393
Loss on disposal of operating fixed asselts - 29 - 29
Impairment loss on trade debts - 3,755 - 3,755
Provision for:
- Workers' Profit Participation Fund 14,720 15,888 28,338 23,318
- Workers' Welfare Fund 1,535 6,543 8,731 8,659
- Slow moving stores, spares and loose tools 17,478 7,261 17,478 7.261
Assets wriiten off 1,881 109 2,097 108
% Others 1,112 (152) 1,112 -
36,428 33,728 57,756 43,524
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Unaudited Unaudited
Three months period ended Six months period ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, December
2025 2024 2025 31, 2024
(Rupees in "000)
FINANCE COSTS
Profit / {loss) on short term loans -
Shariah arrangements {4,735) 19,188 - 30,137
Interest on Non - Shariah arrangements
- finance lease obligations 5,641 12,185 11,819 25,060
- long term loans 5,781 13,327 8,983 38,560
- running finances / short term loans 17,813 44,323 68,017 53,118
Bank charges 2,955 4,729 3,662 9,415
27,455 93,752 92,481 156,290
Basic and diluted earnings per share
Net profit after taxation for the period 248,782 577,021 679,733 672,986
Net profit after taxation from continuing
operations 253,727 595,311 660,415 710,248
Net (loss) / profit from discontinued operation {4,945) (18,290} 19,318 {37,262)
(Number of shares)

Weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue during the period 77,632,491 77,632,491 77,632,491 77,632,491

(Rupees)

Basic and diluted earnings per share 3.20 7.43 8.76 8.67
Basic and diluted earnings per share -
continuing cperafions 3.27 7.67 8.51 9.15
Basic and diluted (loss) / earnings per share
from discontinued operation (0.07) (0.24) 0.25 (0.48)

s,
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Unaudited
Six months period ended
December 31, December
2025 31, 2024

Note ---—-- (Rupees in '000}) -------
CASH GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) OPERATIONS
Profit before taxation 24.2 991,555 917 579
Adjustments for non cash charges and other items:
Depreciation on operating fixed assets, right-of-use assets
and investment properiies 154,094 132,202
Charge on staff retirement benefit funds 26,371 21,116
Dividend income 18 (67,568) (385,691)
Unrealized gain on FVTPL investments - net 18 (349,253) (200,535)
Realized gain on sale of FVTPL investments - net 18 {53,129) {12,289)
NRYV provision for stock-in-trade 7.1 12,055 8,262
Charge for provision on stores, spares and loose tools - net 19 17,478 7,261
Impairment loss on trade debts 19 - 3,755
Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund 19 8,731 8,669
Provision for Workers' Profit Participation Fund 19 28,338 23,318
Asset written off 19 2,097 109
Return on deposits (11,273) (15,315)
(Gain) / loss on disposal of operating fixed assets (18,633) 29
Gain on disposal of non-current assets held for sale 12 {69,445) -
Amortization of deferred income (271) (264)
Unwinding of discount on long term deposit (1,386) (1,364)
Liabilities written back (5,509) (3,108}
Finance costs 20 92,481 156,290
Working capital changes 22.1 1,916,690 (1,414,293)

% 2,673,423 (756,279)
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Unaudited
Six months period ended
December December
31, 2025 31,2024

Note  =wewee- {Rupees in '000) ------
221 Working capital changes
(Increase) / decrease in current assets

Stores, spares and loose tools (74,282) 20,138
Stock-in-trade 1,502,161 {999,541)
Trade debts 477,497 (357,003)
Loans and advances 185,812 47,667
Trade deposits and short ferm prepayments (3,600) (7,003)
Other receivables 2,399,673 (65,340}

4,487,261 {1,361,082)
increase / (decrease) in current liabilily

Trade and other payables (2,570,571) (53,211)
1,916,690  (1,414,293)

222 The cash flows from discontinued operation are as follows:

Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities {(8,842) 25,194
Net cash generated from investing activities 140,915 -
Net cash flows from financing activities - -
132,073 25,194
23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Running finances under mark-up arrangements 15 {58,455) (238,260)
Cash and bank balances 54,682 34,687

(3,773) {203,573)

24, SEGMENT REPORTING

241 Reportable segments
The Company's reportable segments are as follows:
- Steel segment - It comprises of manufacturing and coating of steel pipes.
- Cotton segment - It comprises of manufacturing of yarn.

- Invesiment and Infrastructure Development (HD) segment - To effectively manage the investment portfolio in shares and other
securities (strategic as well as short term) and investment properties (held for rentals as well as long term appreciation).

- Hadeed segment - It comprises of manufacturing billets.
- Energy segment - It comprises of generating and supplying electricity / power.

information regarding the Company's reportable segments is presented below:

e,
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Following is an anaiysis of the Company's revenue and resuits by reportable segments:

Far the s5ix months period ended

December 31, 2025

Sales - net
Cost of sales
Gross profit / (loss)

Income from investrments - net

Distribulion and seliing expenses
Adminisirative expenses
Other operating expenses

Other income

Operating profit f {loss)
before finance costs

Finance cosls
Profit f {loss) before taxation

Taxation
Profit for the period

For the six months period ended

December 31, 2024

Sales - net
Cost of sales
Gross profit / (Joss)

income from investments - net

Distribution and selling expenses
Administralive expenses
Other operating expenses

Other income

Operating profit / {loss)
before finance costs

Finance costs
Profit / {loss} before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the pericd

"

Unaudited
Continued operations Disconti!'nued
operaticn
Steel Cotton Energy Hadeed {Billet}
segment segment segment UD segment Sub-total segment Total
{Rupees in '000)
3,701,885 10,457 - - 3,712,342 - 3,712,342
2,708,419 42,369 25912 - 2,780,700 2,355 2,783,055
993,466 {31,912} (29,912} - 931,642 {2,355) 929,287
- - - 471,950 471,850 - 471,950
993,466 {31,912 {29,912} 471,950 1,403,592 {2,355) 1,401,237
15,486 251 || - - 18,057 1,071 19,428
317,278 4,132 1,410 25,895 348,715 6,075 354,790
47,945 8,699 - 1,112 57,756 - 57,756
380,709 15,402 1,410 27,007 424,528 7,148 431,674
612,757 (47,314) (31,322) 444 843 979,064 {9.501) 969,563
24,906 19,749 - 223 44,878 69,595 114,473
637,663 {27,565) {31,322} 445166 1,023,942 60,094 1,084,036
92,396 85 - - 92,481 - 92,481
545,267 (27,650) (31,322} 445,166 931,461 60,094 991,655
(271,046) (40,776) (311,822;
660,415 19,318 679,733
Unaudited
Continued operations Discontifmed
operation
Steel Cotion Energy IID segment Subtotal Hadeed {Billet) Total
segment segment segment segment
{Rupees in "000)
3,111,404 528 - - 2,111,932 31,302 3,143,224
2,279,607 33,413 30,506 - 2,343,526 59,604 2,403,130
831,797 {32,885) (30,508} - 768,406 (28,302) 740,104
- - - 600,337 600,337 - 600,337
831,797 {32,885) (30,506) 600,337 1,368,743 (28,302) 1,340,441
12,304 2,406 | - - 15707 1,023 16,730
212,096 3,891 1,367 13,857 231,211 7.5937 239,148
43,234 290 - - 43,524 - 43,524
268,631 6,587 1,367 13,857 290,442 8,960 299,402
563,166 (39,472) {31,673 586,480 1,078,301 (37,262) 1,041,039
29,534 3,296 - - 32,830 - 32,830
592,700 (36,176) (31,873) 586,480 1,411,131 (37,262) 1,073,869
156,207 83 - - 156,290 - 156,290
436,493 (36,259} (31,873) 586,480 954,841 (37,262) 917,579
(244,593} - (244,593
710,248 {37,262) 672,986
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Revenue reported above represents revenue generated from external customers.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Company's accounting policies as described in the annual
audited unconsolidated financial statemenis of the Company for the preceding year ended June 30, 2025. The Steel segment
allocates certain percentage of the common expenditure o the Cotion, Energy and |ID segments. [n addition, finance costs

between Steel and Cotton segments are allocaled at average mark-up rate on the basis of funds utilized. This is the measure
reported o management for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.

Revenue from major products and services

The analysis of the Company's revenue from external customers for major preducts and services is given in note 17 to these
condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.

Information about major customers

Revenue from major customers of Steel segment represents an aggregate amount of Rs.3,476.5 million {December 31, 2024: Rs.
3.009.34 million) of total Steel segment revenue of Rs.3,701.89 million {December 31, 2024 Rs. 3,111.4 million).

Geographical information
All revenues from external customers were generated in Pakistan.

All non-current assets of the Company as at December 31, 2025 and June 30, 2025 were located and operating in Pakistan.

Segment assets and liabilities

Reportable segments' assets and liabilities are reconciled to total assets and liabilities as follows:

Continued operations Discontinued

operation
Steel Cofton Energy 1ID segment Subtotal Hadeed (Billet} Total
segment segment segment segment
{(Rupees in '000)
As at December 31, 2025 - (Unaudited)
Segment assets for reporlable segments
5,688,868 270,633 290,521 4,185,438 10,435,858 37,246 10,473,104
Unallocated corporate assels 1,390,339
Total assets as per condensed interim
unconsclidated stalement of financial posilion 11,863,443
Segment liabiliies for reporlable segments 1,500,134 75,754 32,648 24,551 1,633,084 91,126 1,724,210
Unallocated corporate liabillies and deferred income 899,834
Total liabilities as per condensed interim
unconsofidated statement of financial position 2,624,044
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Continued operations

Diseontinued

operation
Steel Cotton Energy IID segment Subtotal Hadeed {Billet) Total
segment segment segment segment
{Rupees in "000)
As at June 30, 2025 - (Audited)
Segment assets for reportable segments 9,284,480 310,514 320,905 3,871,464 13,787,363 450,949 14,238,312
Unallocated corporate assets 1,681,464
Total asseis as per unconsolidated
staternent of financial position 15,919,776
Segment liabilities for reportable segments 4,129,584 89,724 33,170 6,742 4,259,220 90,124 4,349,344
Unallocated corporate Eabilities and deferred income 2,818,665
Total liabililies as per unconsclidated statement of
financial posilion 7,168,009

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating resocurces among segments:

- all assets are allocated to reportable segments other than those directly relating to corporate and taxation assets; and

- alt liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than those directly relating to corporate and taxation.

Cash and bank balances, borrowings and related mark-up receivable therefrom and payable thereon are not allocated to reporting

segments as these are managed by the Company's central treasury function.

Other segment information

For the six months period ended
December 31, 2025

Capital expenditure
Depreciation

Non-cash iterns other than depreciaticn - net

For the six months period ended
December 31, 2024

Capital expenditure
Depreciation

Non-cash items other than depreciation - net

Unaudited
Continued operatlons Disconti!-nued
operation
Steel Cotton Energy IID segment Hadeed {Bitlet} Total
segment segment segment segment
{Rupees in "000)
115,848 - - - - 115,848
117,549 3,741 29,856 2,855 93 154,094
61,535 {5,630} - (348,051) 109 292,037}
302,060 3,180 - - - 305,240
82,567 5,290 29,860 1,669 12,816 132,202
136,681 46,407 2,508 {157,436} 4,781 32,941
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TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise of subsidiaries and associated companies, directors of the Company, companies in which directors also
hold directorship, related group companies, key management personnel and staff retirement benefit funds. All transactions with

related parties are under agreed terms / contractual arrangements.

Transactions with related parties other than those disclosed elsewhere are as follows:

Name

Nature of relationship

Nature of transaction

Unaudited
Six months period ended

December 31, December 31,
2025 2024

-—---——- (Rupees in '000) —-------

CS Capital (Private) Limited Subsidiary company  Reimbursable expenses 2,555 1,969
Solution de Energy (Private) Limited Subsidiary company  Loan given 1,613 2,172
Reimbursable expenses 121 10
interest on loan provided 223 151
Shakarganj Limited Associated company  Services received 522 4,425
Reimbursable expenses 4,259 38
Dividend paid 450 630
Payment made / received 2,836 1,226
Payment received against services provided - -
Advance given for raw material - -
Shakarganj Food Products Limited Related party Payment received 2,000 2,500
Services rendered 1,310 1,904
Rent income 1,123 1,363
Reimburseable expenses 1,603 1,817
Trustees Shakarganj Mills Limited
Provident Fund Related party Dividend paid 421 -
Trustees Shakarganj Mills Limited
Gratuity Fund Related party Dividend paid 168 -
Trustees Shakarganj Mills Limited
Pension Fund Related party Dividend paid 280 -
The Crescent Textile Mills Related party Reimburseable expenses 470 -
Limited* Rent 827 1,182
Payment received 1,682 2,653
Dividend paid 21,346 29,884
Services rendered - 1,040
The Citizens' Foundation* Related party Donation given 53,702 2,880
Pakistan Centre For Philanthropy* Related party Annual membership fee 396 396
Payment annual membership fee 396 396
Premier insurance Limited* Related party Insurance premium 5,057 4,318
Insurance premium paid 4,931 4,546
Dividend paid 354 495
Pak Electron Limited* Related party Sale of goods 30,281 45,610
Payment received 28,962 63,310
Pak-Qatar Asset Management Related party Investment made - 310,220
Company Limited* Investment redeemed - 319,383
Dividend paid - 27,038
Dividend received - 593
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Continued ... Note 25: TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Name

Pak-Qatar Asset Allocation
Plan*

Pak-Qatar Family Takaful
Limited*

Jubilee General Insurance Limited*

Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited*

Meezan Bank Limited*

Crescent Cotton Products - Staff
Provident Fund

Crescent Steel and Allied Products
Product Limited - Gratuity Fund

Crescent Steel and Allied Products
Limited - Pension Fund

Crescent Steel and Allied Products
Limited - Staff Provident Fund

Crescent Hadeed (Private)
Limited - Staff Provident Fund

CSAP - Staff Benevolent Fund

Key management personnel

Chairman of the Board

Directors

* These entities are / have been related parties of the Company by virtue of common directorship only.

Nature of relationship

Related party

Related party

Related party

Related party

Related party

Retirement
benefit fund

Retirement
benefit fund

Retirement
benefit fund

Retirement
benefit fund

Retirement
benefit fund

Staff Welfare Fund

Related parties

Related party

Related parties

Nature of transaction

Principal of Sukuk repaid
Profit on Sukuk repaid
Dividend paid

Payment received
Payment made

Insurance premium
Insurance premium paid

Annual charges
Annual charges paid

Dividend income
Dividend received

Contribution made

Contribution made
Dividend paid

Contribution made
Dividend paid

Contribution made
Dividend paid

Contribution made

Contribution made

Dividend paid

Remuneration and benefits
Dividend paid

Honorarium

Meeting fee
Dividend paid

Six months period ended

December 31, December 31,

2025 2024
---------- (Rupees in "000) ==--=-=--=
36,667 20,000
2,590 7,139
11,250 -

38,663 36,963
38,663 36,963

|

7,314 7,104 |
7,314 7,104
1,861 1,223
1,861 1,223
2,800 2,299
2,800 2,299
421 956
7,571 6,093
6,780 6,784
16,978 14,371
14,038 14,135
10,498 8,112
311 435
- 164
5 624
1,445 127
148,398 136,311
8,030 16,871
1,200 1,200
2,060 1,845
7,289 13,593
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Contributions to the employee retirement benefit funds are made in accordance with the terms of employee retirement benefit
schemes and actuarial advice.

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the Company, including directors of the Company. There were no transactions with the key management personne!
during the period other than under their terms of employment / entitlements.

Balances with related parties are disclosed in the respective receivable and payable notes in these condensed interim
unconsolidated financial statements.

FINANCTAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's financial risk management objectives and policies are consistent with those disclosed in annua! audited
unconsolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2025.

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly fransaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy
based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1 : Fair value measurements using quoted {(unadjusted) in active markets for identical asset or liability.

Level 2 : Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Leve! 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirecily (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 : Fair value measurements using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {i.e.
unobservable inputs).

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting period by the level in the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurement is categorised:

g8
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December 31, 2025 {Un-audited)

Carrying amount Failr value
Fair value Falr value Amortized Other Total Leveld Level 2 Level 3 Total
through through other cost flnanclal
profitor loss comprehensive llabilitles
income
(Rupees in "000)
On-balance sheet
financlal instruments
Financial assets
measured at fair value
Recuming fair value measurements
Investments
- listed equity securities
and units of mutual funds 2,245,102 15,579 - - 2,260 681 1,757,836 502,845 - 2,260,681
- unlisted eruity securities 575,778 - - - 675,778 - - 675,778 675,778
2,920,880 15579 - - 2,936,459 1,757,836 502,845 675,778 2,938,459
Financial assets not
measured at fale valug
Deposits - - 79,412 - 79,412 - - - -
Trade debis - - 1,163,535 - 1,163,535 - - - -
Term deposit receipts - - 94,000 B 94,000 - - - "
Loan to subsidiary - - 4,285 - 4,285 - - - .
Other recejvables - - 422,244 - 422,244 - - - -
Cash and bank balances - - 54,682 “ 54,682 - - - -
“ - 1,818,158 - 1,818158 - - - -
Financlai llabilities not
measured at falr value
Long term loans - - - 22,086 22,086 - - - -
Leasa liabilities - - - 178,396 178,395 - . - -
Trade and oiher payables - - - 766,762 766,762 - - - -
Mark-up accrued - - - 7,644 7,644 - - - -
Short term borrowings - - - 162,339 162,339 - - - -
Unclaimed dividend - - - 150,725 150,729 - - - -
- - - 1,287,956 1,287 956 - - u -
June 30, 2025 (Audited)
Carrying amount Fair value
Fair value Fair value Amaortized Other Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
through through other cost finaneiak
profitorloss comprehensive akilities
income
{Rupees [n "000)
On-balance sheet
financial instruments
Financial assets
measured at fair value
Recurring fair value measurements
invesimenis
- listed equity securities
and units of mulual funds 1,450,401 13,549 - - 1,463,950 1,463,950 931 - 1,464,481
~ unlisted equity securities 629,885 - - “ 629,885 - - 629,885 £29,885
2,080,286 13,549 - - 2,093,835 1,463,950 531 £29,885 2,094,366
Financial assets not
measured at fafr value
Depaosits - - 77,692 - 77,692 - - - -
Trade debts - - 1,641,032 - 1,641,032 - - - -
Trade deposit receipt - - 87,000 - 87,000 - - - -
Loan {o subsidiary - - 2,672 - 2,672 N - - -
Other receivables - - 2,458,630 - 2,458,690 - - - -
Cash and hank balances - - 74,586 - 74,586 - - . -
- - 4,341,672 - 4,341,672 - - - -
FInancial liabilities not
measured at falr value
Long term loans . - - 306,758 306,758 B - - -
Lease liabilities - - - 202,508 202,508 - - - -
Trade and other payables - - - 1,168,932 1,166,932 - - - -
Mark-up accrued - - - 27.284 27,284 . - - -
Short term borrowings - - . 1,964,959 1,964,359 - - - g
Un¢laimed dividend - - - 111,597 111,697 - - - -

- - - 3,782,138 3,782,138 - - - -
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The Company has not disclosed the fair values for all other financial assets and financial liabilities, as these are either short term in nature or
reprice periodically. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value.

Investments in subsidiaries and an associate are stated at cost less accumulated irmpairment, if any.
26.2 Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 3 fair values at December 31, 2025 for unquoted equity
investment measured at fair value in the unconsolidated statement of financial position, as well as the significant unobservable inpuis used:

. Name of investee company Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs Inter-relationship between significant
? unohservable inputs and fair value
; measurement
3 Shakarganj Foed Products Limited - Discounted free cash flows - Expected free cash lows The estimated fair value would increase /
] with tesminal growth: The (decrease} if:
2

valuation medel considers
the present value of .
: expecied free cash flows, ) - The expected free cash flows were higher /
1 discounted using Weighted Weighted Average Cost (lower)

Average Cost of Capital. ~ ©f Capital

- Terminal growth rate

- The terminal growth rate were higher /

3 {lower)
i - The Weighted Average Cost of Capital were
lower | (higher)
g Ceniral Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Dividend growth model: - Dividend growth rate The estimated fair value would increase /
i The valuation model (decrease) if:
o??Lsnidersd th: pnrgsent valle _weighted Average Cost
y of fulure dividends, . - The divid h hich
] discounted using Weighted of Capital on Eer) ividend growdh rate were highes /
J Average Cost of Capital.

- The Weighled Average Cost of Capifal were
lower { {higher)

Dvsssitasn

26.3 Level 3 fair values

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values

[A—

The following table shows a reconcitiation from the opening balances to the closing balances for Level 3 fair values:

-

(Rupees in "000)
Balance at July 1, 2025

- 8hakargan] Food Products Limited

313,484
! - Central Depaository Company of Pakistan Limited 316,404
g’ 629,885
- Fair value recognized in profit or loss during the period
] - Shakarganj Food Products Limited {45,960)
I - Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 95,853
1 45,893
Balance at December 31, 2025

. - Shakarganj Food Products Limited 263,524
% - Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 412,254
S

% . 675,778
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Sensitivity analysis

For the fair value of unquoted equity investments, reasonably possible changes as at December 31, 2025 to one of the significant

unobservable inputs, holding other inputs constant, would have the following effects:

Shakarganj Food Products Limited

- Expected cash flows {10% movement)
- Terminal growth rate (100 bps)
- Weighted Average Cost of Capital (100 bps)

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

- Dividend growth rate (100 bps})
- Weighted Average Cost of Capital (100 bps)

SHARIAH COMPLIANCE DISCLOSURE

As at December 31, 2025 {Un-audited)
Statement of financial position

Long term loans

Lease liabilities

Short term borrowings
Long term investments
Loans to subsidiary
Short term invesiments
Cash and bank balances

For the six months period ended December 31, 2025 (Un-audited)

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Sales (gross)

Dividend income

Realized gain on sale of invesiments
Unrealized gain on sale of investment
Return on deposits

Finance costs

As at June 30, 2025 (Audited)
Statement of financial position

Long term loans

Lease liabilities

Short term borrowings
Long term investments
Loans to subsidiary
Short term investments
Cash and hank balances

For the six months period ended December 31, 2024 {Un-audited)

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Sales (gross)

Dividend income

Realized gain on sale of investments
Unrealized gain on sale of investment
Return on deposits

Finance costs

Note

24
18.1
18.2
18.3

20

24
18.1
8.2
18.3

20

Profit or foss
increase Decrease
-~ (Rupees in '000) -----

31,282 (31,282)
14,066 {12,265)

{19,257) 22 094
34,676 (27 694)

(25,494) 31,926

Non- .
shariah ~Shariah Total
- compliant
compliant

(Rupees in '000)

22,086 - 22,086
178,396 - 178,396
162,339 - 162,339
2,273,915 13,549 2,287,464
4,285 - 4,285
787674 1,551,428 2,339,102

53,536 1,146 54,682

- 3,712,342 3,712,342
28,868 38,700 67,568

14,687 38,442 53,129
55,973 293,280 349,253
11,273 - 11,273
92,481 - 92,481

173,942 132,816 306,758
202,508 - 202,508
1,817,119 147,840 1,964,959

2,225,992 13,549 2,239,541
2,672 - 2,672
525568 1,011,833 1,537,401
71,566 3,020 74,586

- 3,143,234 3,143,234
373,052 12,639 385,691

2,423 9,866 12,289
123,132 77,403 200,535
15,164 - 15,164
126,153 30,137 156,290
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28. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements were authorized for issue in the Board of Directors meeting held on
February 4, 2026

Chief Executive = Dazrector g t Chief Financial Officer
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Crescent Steel and Allied Products Limited
Condensed Interim Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at December 31, 2025 Unaudited Audited
Note December 31, June 30,
2025 2025
-==--------- (Rupees in '000) ------------
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 2,146,175 2,162,526
Right-of-use-assets 154,513 178,578
Intangible assets - -
Investment properties 131,493 133,444
Investment in equity accounted investees 6 - -
Other long term investments 7 1,013,374 938,572
Long term deposits 74,367 70,798
3,519,922 3,483,918
Current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools 441,641 384,837
Stock-in-trade 8 1,467,488 2,983,801
Trade debts 9 1,163,535 1,641,032
Loans and advances 10 120,801 308,226
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 26,208 22,211
Short term investments 1 3,565,250 2,485,852
Other receivables 12 1,055,503 3,457,466
Taxation - net 214,290 390,980
Cash and bank balances 54,722 78,319
8,109,438 11,752,724
Non—current assets held for sale 13 342,919 414,384
Total current assets 8,452,357 12,167,108
Total assets 11,972,279 15,651,026

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY
Share capital and reserves
Authorized capital

100,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 776,325 776,325
Capital reserves 1,020,908 1,020,908
Revenue reserves 7,284,368 6,610,099
9,081,601 8,407,332
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Long term loans 14 18,431 132,289
Lease liabilities 138,426 157,781
Deferred income 2,492 2,763
Deferred taxation - net 269,104 18,814
428,453 311,647

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 15 2,029,980 4,599,295
Unclaimed dividend 150,729 111,697
Mark-up accrued 7,644 27,284
Short term borrowings 16 229,710 1,974,038
Current portion of long term loans 14 3,655 174,469
Current portion of lease liabilities 39,970 44727
Current portion of deferred income 537 537
2,462,225 6,932,047
2,890,678 7,243,694
Contingencies and commitments 17
Total equity and liabilities 11,972,279 15,651,026

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

e 8.

)

Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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Crescent Steel and Allied Products Limited

Condensed Interim Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income (Unaudited)
For the three months and six months period ended December 31, 2025

Note
Sales 18
Less: Sales tax
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Income from investments - net 19
Distribution and selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses 20
Other income
Operating profit / (loss) before finance costs
Finance costs 21

Share of profit in equity accounted investees -
net of taxation
Profit / (loss) before taxation
Taxation
- current for the period
- prior period
- deferred

Net profit / (loss) after taxation from continuing operations
Net (loss) / profit from discontinued operation

Net profit / (loss) for the period

Other comprehensive loss for the period

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Changes in the fair value of equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Proportionate share of other comprehensive (loss) / income
of equity accounted investees

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the period

Basic and diluted earnings / (loss) per share 22
Basic and diluted earnings / (loss) per share - continuing
operations 22

Three months period ended Six months period ended

December 31,

December 31,

December 31,

December 31,

2025 2024 2025 2024
(Rupees in '000)
2,869,186 2,317,056 4,377,491 3,667,936
437,637 350,946 665,149 556,004
2,431,549 1,966,110 3,712,342 3,111,932
1,907,726 1,438,173 2,780,700 2,343,526
523,823 527,937 931,642 768,406
97,155 505,112 706,910 521,739
620,978 1,033,049 1,638,552 1,290,145
9,658 8,418 18,057 15,707
224,537 144,938 354,189 234,575
36,428 1,318,546 57,756 1,328,342
270,623 1,471,902 430,002 1,578,624
350,355 (438,853) 1,208,550 (288,479)
35,493 17,260 45,931 34,382
385,848 (421,593) 1,254,481 (254,097)
27,659 93,758 93,010 156,561
- 223177 - 538,584
358,189 (292,174) 1,161,471 127,926
(18,517) (103,150) (105,393) (121,219)
9,788 100,986 9,788 100,986
(67,745) (4,730) (245,266) (55,882)
(76,474) (6,894) (340,871) (76,115)
281,715 (299,068) 820,600 51,811
(4,945) (18,290) 19,318 (37,262)
276,770 (317,358) 839,918 14,549
26,876 27,850 28,432 18,357
- - - 360
26,876 27,850 28,432 18,717
303,646 (289,508) 868,350 33,266
(Rupees)
3.57 (4.09) 10.82 0.19
3.63 (3.85) 10.57 0.67

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

T Mg alionn

e

N el )

Chief Executive Director

./

Chief Financial Officer
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Crescent Steel and Allied Products Limited

Condensed Interim Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Unaudited)

For the six months period ended December 31, 2025

Issued, Capital reserves Total capital Revenue reserves Total Total
subscr:lbed Share . reserves Fair value General Unappropriated revenue
and paid-up X Others L reserves
i premium reserve reserve profit
capital
(Rupees in '000)
Balance as at July 1, 2024 776,325 1,020,908 29,761 1,050,669 (23,018) 3,642,000 3,245,120 6,864,102 8,691,096
Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit after taxation for the period - - - - - - 14,549 14,549 14,549
Other comprehensive income for the period - - 360 360 18,357 - - 18,357 18,717
Total comprehensive loss for the period - - 360 360 18,357 - 14,549 32,906 33,266
Transaction with owners of the Holding Company
- distributions
- Final dividend @ 35% (i.e. Rs. 3.5 per share) for
the year ended June 30, 2024 - - - - - - (271,714) (271,714) (271,714)

Balance as at December 31, 2024 776,325 1,020,908 30,121 1,051,029 (4,661) 3,642,000 2,987,955 6,625,294 8,452,648
Balance as at July 1, 2025 776,325 1,020,908 - 1,020,908 49,196 3,642,000 2,918,903 6,610,099 8,407,332
Total comprehensive loss for the period
Profit after taxation for the period - - - - - - 839,918 839,918 839,918
Other comprehensive loss for the period - - - - 28,432 - - 28,432 28,432
Total comprehensive loss for the period - - - - 28,432 - 839,918 868,350 868,350
Transactions with owners of the Holding Company
- distrbutions

- Final dividend @ 25% (i.e. Rs. 2.50 per share) for the year

ended June 30, 2025 - - - - - (194,081) (194,081) (194,081)
Transfer to general reserve - - - - - 3,000,000 (3,000,000) - -
Balance as at December 31, 2025 776,325 1,020,908 - 1,020,908 77,628 6,642,000 564,740 7,284,368 9,081,601

* This represents the Group's share of various reserves held by equity accounted investees.

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

M"“V\

—

L}

Chief Executive

N el Q)

Director

Chief Financial Officer
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Crescent Steel and Allied Products Limited

Condensed Interim Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Unaudited)
For the six months period ended December 31, 2025

Note Six months period ended
December 31, December 31,
2025 2024

---------- (Rupees in '000) ---------

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash used in operations 23 2,686,153 (755,626)
Taxes refund / (paid) 40,309 (212,090)
Finance costs paid (101,097) (131,723)
Contribution to staff retirement benefits (21,794) (13,481)
Contribution to Workers' Welfare Fund (12,024) (19,016)
Contribution to Workers' Profit Participation Fund (38,114) (91,876)
Long term deposits - net (2,183) 1,864
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 2,551,250 (1,221,948)
Cash flows from investing activities

Capital expenditure (117,656) (305,240)
Acquisition of intangible assets - (5,091)
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets 164,954 1,689
Investments - net (524,720) (390,112)
Dividend income received 95,647 423,237
Interest income received 26,642 16,867
Net cash used in investing activities (355,133) (258,650)
Cash flows from financing activities

(Repayments of) / proceeds from long term loans - net (284,672) 16,348
Payments against finance lease obligations (35,665) (49,723)
(Repayments of) / proceeds from short term loans obtained - net (1,260,834) 1,256,818
Dividends paid (155,049) (216,040)
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (1,736,220) 1,007,403
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 459,897 (473,195)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period (530,877) 287,473
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 24 (70,980) (185,722)

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

W

Chief Executive Director

sl \\}ng}_// %

Chief Financial Officer
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Crescent Steel and Allied Products Limited
Notes to the Condensed Interim Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
For the six months period ended December 31, 2025

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS

The Group consists of Crescent Steel and Allied Products Limited (‘the Holding Company') and its wholly owned
subsidiary companies namely; CS Capital (Private) Limited, Solution de Energy (Private) Limited and Crescent
Continental Gas Pipelines Limited.

The Holding Company was incorporated on August 1, 1983 as a public limited company in Pakistan under the
repealed Companies Act, 1913 (now the Companies Act, 2017) and is quoted on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The
registered office of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries companies are located at E- Floor, IT Tower, 73-E/1,
Hali Road, Gulberg lll, Lahore, where as its principal offices are situated at 9th floor, Sidco Avenue Centre, 264 R.A.
Lines, Karachi.

CS Capital (Private) Limited was incorporated on November 5, 2010 as a private limited company in Pakistan under
the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). The head office of the Subsidiary Company is
located at principal office of the Holding Company. The principal activity of the Subsidiary Company is to effectively
manage investment portfolios in shares, commodities and other securities (strategic as well as short term). On
September 26, 2011, the Holding Company has purchased the entire shareholding from its previous principal
shareholder. Consequently, the Company becomes the wholly owned subsidiary of the Holding Company.

Solution de Energy (Private) Limited was incorporated as a private limited company in Pakistan under the provisions of
the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017) as a result of Joint Venture Agreement (“the
Agreement”) executed on October 8, 2013 between Management de Consortium Capital (MdeCC), a partnership
concern and the Holding Company. During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Agreement was dissolved and the
Holding Company and MdeCC entered into a management contract, whereby MdeCC is responsible for managing the
project.

The head office of the Subsidiary Company is located at principal office of the Holding Company. The principal activity
of the Subsidiary Company is to build, own, operate and maintain 100MW solar power project (the Project) and to
generate, accumulate, distribute, sell and supply electricity / power to PEPCO / DISCOS under the agreement with the
Government of Pakistan or to any other consumer as permitted.

The Subsidiary Company has been granted electricity generation license from National Electric Power Regulatory
Authority (NEPRA) for its 100MW Solar Power Plant on April 29, 2020 and Subsidiary Company has submitted the
tariff petition to NEPRA on July 22, 2020.

Crescent Continental Gas Pipelines Limited having share capital of Rs. 90 is not carrying on any business operations.

Details regarding the Group's associates are given in note 6 to these condensed interim consolidated financial
statements.

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company, in its meeting held on February 4, 2026 has approved an interim cash
dividend of Rs. 2 per share for the year ending June 30, 2026. These condensed interim consolidated financial
statements do not reflect the effect of the interim cash dividend payable as approved by the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company.

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company, in its meeting held on February 4, 2026, has resolved to discontinue
the Cotton segment as part of the Group’s strategic realignment. The Cotton segment will cease to be part of the
Group’s continuing operations and it will be presented as a “discontinued operation” for reporting purposes.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These condensed interim consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting, which comprise of:

- International Accounting Standard (IAS) 34, Interim Financial Reporting, issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 ("the Act"); and

- Provisions of, directives and notification issued under the Act.
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3.2

3.21

3.2.2

4.2

Where the provisions of, directives and notification issued under the Act differ with the requirements of IAS 34, the
provisions of, directives and notification issued under the Act have been followed.

These condensed interim consolidated financial statements of the Group do not include all of the information required
for annual consolidated financial statements and should be read in conjunction with the audited annual consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended June 30, 2025. However, selected explanatory notes are included
to explain events and transactions that are significant to an understanding of the changes in the Group’s financial
position and performance since the last annual consolidated financial statements.

These condensed interim consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees which is also the
Group's functional currency and all financial information presented has been rounded off to the nearest thousand,
except otherwise stated.

These condensed interim consolidated financial statements are being submitted to the shareholders as required by
listing regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange vide section 237 of the Companies Act, 2017.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

There were certain amendments to published accounting and reporting standards that were mandatory for the financial
year that began on July 1, 2025. These are considered not to have any significant effect on the Group's financial
reporting and operations and are therefore, not disclosed in these condensed interim consolidated financial
statements.

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED
ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS

The accounting policies and the methods of computation adopted in the preparation of these condensed interim
consolidated financial statements are the same as those applied in the preparation of the audited annual consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2025.

There are certain new standards and amendments that will be applicable to the Group for its annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2026. The new standards include IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements
and IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures both with applicability date of January 1, 2027.
The overall amendments include those made to IFRS 7 and IFRS 9 which clarify the date of recognition and
derecognition of a financial asset or financial liability which are applicable effective January 1, 2026. The Group's
management at present is in the process of assessing the full impacts of these new standards and the amendments to
IFRS 7 and IFRS 9 and is expecting to complete the assessment in due course.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of these condensed interim consolidated financial statements requires management to make
estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the application of Group's accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates, judgments and
assumptions.

Estimates and judgements made by management in the preparation of these condensed interim consolidated financial
statements are the same as those applied in the annual audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended June 30, 2025.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Unaudited Audited
Note December 31, June 30,
2025 2025

Operating fixed assets 5.1 1,864,298 1,929,642
Capital work-in-progress 281,877 232,884
2,146,175 2,162,526
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5.1

5.2

Following are the cost of operating fixed assets added and disposed off during the six months period ended:

Unaudited
Six months period ended
December 31, 2025

Unaudited
Six months period ended
December 31, 2024

Additions Disposals Additions Disposals
Cost Cost
(Rupees in '000)
Land 1,950 - - -
Buildings on leasehold land - - - -
Buildings on freehold land 5,929 - - -
Plant and machinery - owned 23,467 56,831 2,700 -
Electrical / office equipment and
installation 2,255 - 2,605 310
Computers and accessories 4,484 212 1,924 -
Motor vehicles - owned 30,069 15,157 21,195 3,422
68,640 72,200 28,424 3,732

Additions to capital work-in-progress during the six months period ended December 31, 2025 amounted to Rs. 79.97
million netted off with transfers of Rs. 30.95 million (December 31, 2024: additions and transfers of Rs. 276.82 million

and Rs. 17.85 million respectively).

INVESTMENT IN EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES

The following associates, over which the Group has significant influence either due to representation on the investee
company's board or percentage of holding of voting power or both, are accounted for under the equity method of

accounting as defined in IAS 28 'Investments in Associates'.

Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
December 31, June 30, Note December 31, June 30,
2025 2025 2025 2025
(Number of sharesy ~ ememema———- (Rupees in '000) ------
Quoted
35,011,347 35,011,347 Shakarganj Limited 6.1 - -
(Chief Executive Officer -
Mr. Muhammad Saif Ullah)
Unquoted
3,430,000 3,430,000 Crescent Socks (Private) Limited 6.1 - -

(Chief Executive Officer -
Mr. Shehryar Mazhar)
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6.2

6.3.1

6.4

Movement of investment in equity accounted investees is as follows:

December 31, 2025

Description Altern Energy Shakarganj Crescent Socks Total
Limited Limited (Private)
Limited
Rupees in '000
Opening balance as at July 1, 2025 - - - -
Share of profit - - - -
Share of equity - - - -
Closing balance as at December 31, 2025 - - - -
June 30, 2025
Description Altern Shakarganj Crescent Socks Total
Energy Limited (Private)
Limited Limited
Rupees in '000
Opening balance as at July 1, 2024 2,572,926 - - 2,572,926
Share of loss (474,924) - - (474,924)
Share of equity 360 - - 360
Dividend received (753,916) - - (753,916)
Shares disposed (608,484) - - (608,484)
Impairment loss (220,171) - - (220,171)
Retained interest transferred to
short term investment (515,791) - - (515,791)
Closing balance as at June 30, 2025 - - - -
Percentage of holding of equity in associates is as follows
Unaudited Audited
December 31, June 30,
Note 2025 2025
Shakarganj Limited 6.3.1 28.01 28.01
Crescent Socks (Private) Limited 48.99 48.99

The Holding Company and the Subsidiary Company hold 21.93% and 6.08%, respectively i.e. aggregate holding of
28.01% in the investee company. There is common directorship in the investee company. However, the holding
company directly and / or indirectly has significant influence as per IAS 28 'Investments in Associates’, therefore only

for the purpose of the equity accounting as required under IAS 28 it has been treated as an associate.

The fair value of investments in associates as at December 31, 2025 is Rs. 3,938.78 million (June 30, 2025: Rs.

2,392.33 million).
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7.2

7.3

8.1

OTHER LONG TERM INVESTMENTS Unaudited Audited
Note December 31, June 30,
2025 2025

(Rupees in '000)

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 7.1 249,754 204,192
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 72&7.3 763,620 734,380
1,013,374 938,572

This includes investment in Crescent Textile Mills Limited which are not held for trading and the Group has
irrevocably designated at initial application of IFRS 9 to recognize in this category. This is strategic
investment and management considers this classification to be more relevant. The accumulated fair value
reserve related to this investment will never be reclassified to profit or loss.

This includes investments in Crescent Industrial Chemicals Limited and Crescent Bahuman Limited
amounting to Rs. 10.470 million and Rs. 24.037 million, respectively, which had been fully charged to profit or
loss in earlier periods.

This also includes investment in Shakarganj Food Products Limited and Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited amounting to Rs. 351.37 million and Rs. 412.25 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 417.98 million
and Rs. 316.40 million), respectively.

STOCK-IN-TRADE Unaudited Audited
December 31, June 30,
2025 2025

(Rupees in '000)
Raw materials

Hot rolled steel coils (HR Coil) 274,816 1,713,626
Coating materials 122,918 311,976
Steel scrap 2,327 2,327
Raw cotton 86,460 100,206
Stock-in-transit - 25,913
Others 324,052 353,078
810,573 2,507,126

Work-in-process 204,956 57,023
Finished goods 8.1 451,883 398,907
Scrap / cotton waste 76 20,745
656,915 476,675

1,467,488 2,983,801

Stock in trade as at December 31, 2025 includes certain items valued at net realisable value (NRV). Charge
for the period in respect of stock written down to NRV amounting to Rs. 12.06 million (June 30, 2025: Rs.
20.69 million) has been recognized in cost of sales.
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9.1

10.

1.

TRADE DEBTS Unaudited Audited

Note December 31, June 30,
2025 2025
(Rupees in '000)
Secured
Considered good - 196,540
Unsecured
Considered good 9.1 1,163,535 1,444,492
Considered doubtful 27,529 27,529
1,191,064 1,472,021
Impairment loss on trade debts (27,529) (27,529)

1,163,535 1,641,032

This includes amount due from Pak Elektron Limited (a related party) amounting to Rs. 24.78 million (June
30, 2025: Rs. 23.47 million).

ADVANCES
Unsecured
Advances - considered good
Executives and staff 14,704 123
Suppliers for goods and services 51,251 44,654
Contract cost 46,773 261,890
Others 8,073 1,559
Advances - considered doubtful
Suppliers for goods and services 47 47
Provision for doubtful advances (47) (47)
120,801 308,226
SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
At amortized cost 11.1 94,000 87,000
At fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 11.2 3,321,250 2,248,852
Investment in commodity 150,000 150,000

3,565,250 2,485,852

This represents investments in fixed deposit receipts carrying markup of 8.40% to 9.54% (December 31,
2024: 9.67% to 18%) maturing upto December 11, 2026.

These comprise investment in ordinary shares of listed companies and units of mutual funds.

Investments having an aggregate market value of Rs. 717.87 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 1,752.45 million)
have been pledged with financial institutions as security against financing facilities (see note 16.4) out of
which Rs. 173.64 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 326.24 million) relates to other long term investments.
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121

13.

14.

141

1411

OTHER RECEIVABLES Unaudited Audited

Note December 31, June 30,
2025 2025
---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
Dividend receivable 1,429 1,296
Provision there against (886) (886)
543 410
Receivable against sale of investments 34,038 37,596
Receivable against commodity 16,500 16,500
Provision there against (17,723) (17,723)
32,815 36,373
Receivable against rent from investment property 70 45
Claim receivable 661 461
Due from related parties 12.1 186 1,704
Sales tax refundable 302,036 689,894
Margin on letter of credit - 3,471
Margin on letter of guarantee 401,730 2,411,491
Receivable from staff retirement benefits funds 316,610 312,797
Others 852 820

1,055,503 3,457,466

Due from related parties

The Crescent Textile Mills Limited 186 571
Shakarganj Food Products Limited - 1,079
Premier Insurance Limited - 54

186 1,704

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company in their meeting held on October 3, 2024 had approved the
disposal of plant and machinery and certain other related assets of Hadeed (Billet) Segment. Consequently,
the operation of Hadeed (Billet) Segment has been classified as discontinued operation in note 25. During the
period, assets having carrying amount of Rs. 71.47 million have been disposed off resulting in a gain of Rs.
69.44 million, which is presented in the results of discontinued operation. The buyer shall complete the
purchase of all assets in due course.

LONG TERM LOANS

Secured - shariah arrangement

Sukuk Certificates 141 - 133,333
Less: Transaction Cost 14.11 - (517)
- 132,816

Secured - Under non-shariah arrangement
JS Bank Limited 14.2 22,086 23,942
Allied Bank Limited 14.3 - 150,000
22,086 306,758
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities 3,655 (174,469)
18,431 132,289

The Holding Company issued 8,000 unlisted, privately placed and secured Sukuk certificates (SUKUK-AI-
Istisna), having face value of Rs. 100,000 each, amounting to Rs. 800 million. The Sukuk certificates carried
profit at the rate of 6-months KIBOR + 2% per annum with semi-annual rental payments having tenure of
three years from the issue date on arrear basis. During the period, the Holding Company has paid the
remaining principal amount of Rs. 133.33 million and profit on such arrangement was 14.09% (December 31,
2024: 16.68% to 23.73%) per annum.

This represents the cost incurred with respect to issuance of SUKUK certificates, amortized using effective
rate of interest.
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14.2

14.3

15.

15.1

16.

The Holding Company entered into a loan arrangement with JS Bank Limited in which 5 tranches were
received. The tranches were converted into the State Bank of Pakistan’s (SBP) “SBP Financing scheme for
Renewable Energy”. The term of the loan is 10 years from the date of disbursement with a grace period of 3
months, repayable in monthly installments starting from June 2021. Mark-up was payable quarterly at the rate
of 1 month KIBOR plus 1% per annum up till approval of refinance from the SBP and after approval, mark-up
is payable at the concessional rate of 6% per annum.

The effective interest on such arrangement is 8.47% to 11.35% (December 31, 2024: 8.47% to 11.35%) per
annum.

The Holding Company entered into a loan arrangement with Allied Bank Limited for a term of 3 years with a
grace period of 1 year. The principal amount of loan was repayable quarterly starting from March 31, 2026.
Mark-up was payable quarterly at the rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 1.5% per annum. During the period ended
December 31, 2025, the Holding Company has paid off entire amount of loan and interest rate charged on
such arrangement was 12.63% (December 31, 2024: 13.68%) per annum.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Unaudited Audited
Note December 31, June 30,
2025 2025

-------- (Rupees in '000) -------
Trade creditors 113,125 157,423
Bills payable 38 38
Commission payable 459 385

Customer's security deposits 1,062 -
Accrued liabilities 575,741 683,755
Contract liabilities 428,660 2,907,833
Deposits 297,096 250,000
Infrastructure fee, Sales tax and damages 403,565 394,984
Due to related parties 15.1 25,444 24,380

Payable against purchase of investments 7,448 -
Payable to provident fund 3,853 232

Contribution payable to staff retirement benefit funds 4,769 -
Retention money 2,507 2,256

Sales tax payable - -
Withholding tax payable 9,008 5,232
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 31,437 41,213
Workers' Welfare Fund 30,586 33,879
Others 95,182 97,685

2,029,980 4,599,295

Due to related parties

Premier Insurance Company Limited 72 -

Shakarganj Food Products Limited 91 -

Shakarganj Limited 25,281 24,380
25,444 24,380

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Secured from banking companies
Running finances under mark-up arrangements 16.1 125,702 609,196
Short term loans 16.2& 16.4 104,008 1,364,842

229,710 1,974,038
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16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

16.5

17.

171

17.2

17.21

17.2.2

17.2.3

Running finance / money market facilities are available from conventional side of various commercial banks
under mark-up arrangements amounting to Rs. 1,350 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 1,150 million) out of which
Rs. 350 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 300 million), Rs. 100 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 100 million) and Rs. 350
million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 900 million) are interchangeable with letter of credit, letter of guarantee facility and
short term loan, respectively. During the period, mark-up on such arrangements ranged between 12.82% to
13.64% (December 31, 2024: 13.96% to 23.73%) per annum.

Short term loans available from various commercial banks under mark-up arrangements amounted to Rs.
6,515 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 6,565 million) out of which Rs. 3,615 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 2,900
million), Rs. 350 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 400 million) and Rs. 300 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 300 million)
are interchangeable with letters of credit, short-term running finance and letters of guarantee facility,
respectively. During the period, the mark-up on such arrangements ranged frrom 12.53% to 13.60%
(December 31, 2024: 15.91% to 23.71%) per annum.

The facilities for opening letters of credit amounted to Rs. 6,000 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 6,050 million) out
of which Rs. 965 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 765 million), Rs. 3,000 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 4,200 million)
and Rs. 300 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 200 million) are interchangeable with short term running finance, short
term loans and letters of guarantee facility respectively as mentioned in notes 16.1 and 16.2 above. The
facility for letters of guarantee as at December 31, 2025 amounted to Rs. 4,313.5 million (June 30, 2025: Rs.
4,629.30 million). Amounts unutilized for letters of credit and guarantees as at December 31, 2025 were Rs.
5,505.8 million and Rs. 3,119.95 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 4,486.71 million and Rs. 897.0 million ),
respectively.

This includes an amount of Rs. Nil (June 30, 2025: Rs. 147.84 million) outstanding against islamic mode of
financing.

The above facilities are expiring on various dates with maturity period upto March 31, 2026. These facilities
are secured by way of mortgage of land and building, hypothecation of plant and machinery, stock-in-trade,
trade debts and other current assets, pledge of shares (refer note 11.3), and lien over import / export
documents.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

There is no significant change in the status of the matters as set out in note 12.2.1,15, 29.3 and 30.1 to the
Group's annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2025.

Commitments

Aggregate amount of guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the Group against various contracts
aggregated to Rs. 1,493.54 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 3,732.25 million). These include guarantees issued by
Islamic banks amounting to Rs. 50.18 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. 50.18 million).

Commitments in respect of capital expenditure contracted for by the Holding Company as at December 31,
2025 amounted to Rs. 667.31 million (June 30, 2025: Rs. Nil).

Commitments under letters of credit as at December 31, 2025 amounted to Rs. 594.16 million (June 30, 2025:
Rs. 1,563.29 million).

70



18.

18.1

18.2

19.

19.1

19.2

19.3

19.4

19.5

Unaudited Unaudited

SALES Three months period ended Six months period ended
Note  December December 31, December December
31, 2025 2024 31, 2025 31, 2024
(Rupees in '000)
Local sales

Bare pipes 1,788,299 1,324,607 2,521,849 1,806,593

Pipe coating 226,654 - 619,589 -
Coated pipes 18.1 660,898 925,741 977,030 1,760,665
Cotton yarn / raw cotton - 623 12,339 623
Others 179,508 40,820 216,020 68,182
Scrap / waste 13,827 25,265 30,664 31,873
2,869,186 2,317,056 4,377,491 3,667,936
Sales tax (437,637) (350,946) (665,149) (556,004)
2,431,549 1,966,110 3,712,342 3,111,932

This includes revenue amounting to Rs. 20.2 million for the six months period ended (December 31, 2024: Rs. 1,760.70 million),
where HRC (Hot Rolled Coil) was supplied by the customer.

Revenue is disaggregated by major products and also by geographical market. Additionally, revenue by major customers is
disclosed in note 25.4 to these condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

Unaudited Unaudited
Three months period ended Six months period ended
Note  December December 31, December December
31, 2025 2024 31, 2025 31, 2024

(Rupees in '000)
INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS - NET

Dividend income 19.1 75,577 37,036 95,780 57,135
Gain on sale of FVTPL investments - net 19.2 29,356 32,447 73,654 35,218
Realized gain on investment in commodities 12,198 - 14,684 -
Unrealized (loss) / gain on FVTPL investments - net 19.3 (22,055) 433,728 518,812 425,584
Rent from investment properties 19.5 2,079 1,901 3,980 3,802
97,155 505,112 706,910 521,739

This includes Rs. 60.02 million (December 31, 2024: Rs. 29.79 million) earned on investments in Shariah Compliant Investee

This includes Rs. 56.50 million (December 31, 2024: Rs. 29.31 million ) incurred on disposal of investments in Shariah Compliant
Investee Companies.

This includes gain of Rs. 473.28 million (December 31, 2024: Rs. 94.58 million) on investments in Shariah Compliant Investee
Companies.

Income from investment was categorized as Shariah / Non-Shariah compliant investee companies on the basis of All Shares
Islamic Index as circulated by the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

Direct operating expenses incurred against rental income from investment properties amounted to Rs. 3.84 million (December 31,
2024: Rs. 1.22 million).
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21.

22,

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Exchange (gain) / loss
Loss on disposal of operating fixed assets
Imapirment loss on trade debts
Provision for:
Workers' Profit Participation Fund
Workers' Welfare Fund
Assets written off
Impairment of Equity accounted investment
Others

FINANCE COSTS

Mark-up on short term loans - Shariah arrangement
Interest on - Non - Shariah arrangement

- finance lease obligations

- long term loan

- running finances / short term loans
Bank charges

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE

Profit / (loss) for the period
Net profit / (loss) after taxation from continuing operations
Net (loss) / profit from discontinued operation

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the period

Basic and diluted earnings / (loss) per share

Basic and diluted earnings / (loss) per share - continuing
operations

Basic and diluted (loss) / earnings per share -
discontinued operation

Unaudited
Three months period ended

Unaudited
Six months period ended

December December 31, December December
31, 2025 2024 31, 2025 31, 2024
(Rupees in '000)

(298) 294 - 392
- 29 - 29
- 3,755 - 3,755

14,720 15,888 28,338 23,318
1,535 6,543 8,731 8,659
1,881 109 2,097 109

- 1,284,819 - 1,284,819

1,112 (152) 1,112 -
36,428 1,318,546 57,756 1,328,342

Unaudited Unaudited

Three months period ended Six months period ended
December December 31, December December

31, 2025 2024 31, 2025 31, 2024

(Rupees in '000)

(4,735) 19,188 - 30,137
5,641 12,185 11,819 25,060
5,781 13,327 8,983 38,560

18,013 44,323 68,509 53,382
2,959 4,735 3,699 9,422

27,659 93,758 93,010 156,561

Unaudited Unaudited

Three months period ended

Six months period ended

December December 31, December December
31, 2025 2024 31, 2025 31, 2024
(Rupees in '000)
276,770 (317,358) 839,918 14,549
281,715 (299,068) 820,600 51,811
(4,945) (18,290) 19,318 (37,262)
(Number of shares) ==--===========zaaaaaannn
77,632,491 77,632,491 77,632,491 77,632,491
(Rupees)
3.57 (4.09) 10.82 0.19
3.63 (3.85) 10.57 0.67
(0.06) (0.24) 0.25 (0.48)
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231

23.2

24,

25.

251

CASH GENERATED / (USED) IN OPERATIONS

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for non cash charges and other items
Depreciation on operating fixed assets and investment properties
Charge for the period on staff retirement benefit funds
Dividend income

Unrealized gain on FVTPL investments - net

Gain on sale of FVTPL investments - net

Realized gain on investment in commodities

NRYV provision for stock in trade

Charge of provision for stores, spares and loose tools - net
Impairment loss on trade debts - net

Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund

Provision for Workers' Profit Participation Fund

Return on deposits

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets

Deferred income

Unwinding of discount on long term deposit

Liabilities written back

Asset written off

Finance costs

Impairment on equity accounted investment

Share of profit from equity accounted investees - net of taxation
Working capital changes

Working capital changes

Decrease / (increase) in current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools
Stock-in-trade
Trade debts
Advances
Trade deposits and short term prepayments
Other receivables

Decrease in current liabilities
Trade and other payables

The cash flows from discontinued operation are as follows:

Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities
Net cash generated from investing activities
Net cash flows from financing activities

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Running finances under mark-up arrangements
Cash and bank balances

SEGMENT REPORTING

Reportable segments

The Group's reportable segments are as follows:

- Steel segment - It comprises of manufacturing and coating of steel pipes.

- Cotton segment - It comprises of manufacturing of yarn.

Unaudited
Six months period ended
Note December 31, December 31,
2025 2024
--------- (Rupees in '000) ---------

1,221,565 90,664

154,612 132,720

26,371 21,116
19 (95,780) (57,135)
19 (518,812) (425,584)
19 (73,654) (35,218)

19 (14,684) -

12,060 6,262

17,478 7,261

20 - 3,755
20 8,731 8,659
20 28,338 23,318
(11,958) (16,867)

(88,078) 29
(271) (264)
(1,386) (1,364)
(5,509) (3,108)

20 2,007 109
21 93,010 156,561
20 - 1,284,818
6.1 - (538,584)
23.1 1,932,023 (1,412,774)
2,686,153 (755,626)

(74,282) 20,138
1,502,156 (999,541)
477,497 (357,003)

187,425 49,839
(3,997) (7,003)
2,402,351 (75,449)

4,491,150 (1,369,019)

(2,559,127) (43,755)

1,932,023 (1,412,774)

(8,842) 25,194
140,915 -
132,073 25,194

(125,702) (238,260)

54,722 52,538
(70,980) (185,722)

- Investment and Infrastructure Development (IID) segment - To effectively manage the investment portfolio in shares and other securities (strategic as well as

short term) and investment properties (held for rentals as well as long term appreciation).

- Energy segment - It comprises of generating and supplying electricity/power.
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25.2

25.21
25.2.2

- Hadeed (Billet) segment - It comprises of manufacturing billets.

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments is presented below:

Segment revenues and results

Following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by reportable segment:

For the six months period ended

December 31, 2025

Sales - net
Cost of sales
Gross profit / (loss)

Income from investments - net

Distribution and selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses

Other income
Operating profit / (loss) before
finance costs

Finance costs
Profit / (loss) before taxation

Taxation
Profit for the period

For the six months period ended
December 31, 2024

Sales - net
Cost of sales
Gross profit / (loss)

Income from investments - net

Distribution and selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses

Other income

Operating profit / (loss)
before finance costs

Finance costs

Share of profit in equity accounted
investees - net of taxation

Profit / (loss) before taxation

Taxation
Profit / (loss) for the period

Unaudited

Continuing operations

H Discontinued

operation
Steel Cotton Energy IID Sub-total Hadeed (Billet) Total
segment segment segment segment segment
(Rupees in '000)
3,701,885 10,457 - - 3,712,342 - 3,712,342
2,708,419 42,369 29,912 - 2,780,700 2,355 2,783,055
993,466 (31,912) (29,912) - 931,642 (2,355) 929,287
- - - 706,910 706,910 - 706,910
993,466 (31,912) (29,912) 706,910 1,638,552 (2,355) 1,636,197
15,486 2,571 - - 18,057 1,071 19,128
317,278 4,132 1,756 31,023 354,189 6,075 360,264
47,945 8,699 - 1,112 57,756 - 57,756
380,709 15,402 1,756 32,135 430,002 7,146 437,148
612,757 (47,314) (31,668) 674,775 1,208,550 (9,501) 1,199,049
24,906 19,749 - 1,276 45,931 69,595 115,526
637,663 (27,565) (31,668) 676,051 1,254,481 60,094 1,314,575
92,396 85 24 505 93,010 - 93,010
545,267 (27,650) (31,692) 675,546 1,161,471 60,094 1,221,565
(340,871) (40,776) (381,647)
820,600 19,318 839,918
Unaudited
Continuing operations ‘ DISCOntI!‘Iued
operation
Steel segment Cotton Energy 1ID segment Subtotal Hadeed (Billet) Total
segment segment segment
(Rupees in '000)
3,111,404 528 - 3,111,932 31,302 3,143,234
2,279,607 33,413 30,506 - 2,343,526 59,604 2,403,130
831,797 (32,885) (30,506) - 768,406 (28,302) 740,104
- - - 521,739 521,739 - 521,739
831,797 (32,885) (30,506) 521,739 1,290,145 (28,302) 1,261,843
13,301 2,406 - - 15,707 1,023 16,730
212,096 3,890 1,420 17,169 234,575 7,937 242,512
43,234 290 1,284,818 1,328,342 - 1,328,342
268,631 6,586 1,420 1,301,987 1,578,624 8,960 1,587,584
563,166 (39,471) (31,926) (780,248) (288,479) (37,262) (325,741)
29,383 3,296 - 1,703 34,382 - 34,382
592,549 (36,175) (31,926) (778,545) (254,097) (37,262) (291,359)
156,207 83 1 270 156,561 - 156,561
- - - 538,584 538,584 - 538,584
436,342 (36,258) (31,927) (240,231) 127,926 (37,262) 90,664
(76,115) - (76,115)
51,811 (37,262) 14,549

Transfer prices between reportable segments are on an agreed basis in @ manner similar to transactions between third parties.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies as described in the annual consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended June 30, 2025. The Steel segment allocates certain percentage of the common expenditure to the Cotton, Energy, Hadeed (Billet) and
IID segments. In addition, finance costs between Steel and Cotton segments are allocated at average mark-up rate on the basis of funds utilized. This is the

measure reported to management for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.
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25.3

254

25.5

25.5.1

25.5.2

25.6

25.6.1

25.7

Revenue from major products and services

The analysis of the Group's revenue from external customers for major products and services is given in note 18 to these condensed interim consolidated financial

statements.

Information about major customers

Revenue from major customers of Steel segment represents an aggregate amount of Rs. 3,476.5 million (December 31, 2024: Rs. 3,009.34 million) of total Steel
segment revenue of Rs. 3,701.89 million (December 31, 2024: Rs. 3,111.4 million).

Geographical information

All revenues from external customers and inter-segment sales were generated in Pakistan.

All non-current assets of the Group as at December 31, 2025 and June 30, 2025 were located and operating in Pakistan.

Segment assets and liabilities

Reportable segments' assets and liabilities are reconciled to total assets and liabilities as follows:

Continuing operations

Discontinued

As at December 31, 2025 - Unaudited

Segment assets for reportable segments

Unallocated corporate assets

Total assets as per consolidated statement
of financial position

Segment liabilities for reportable segments
Unallocated corporate liabilities and deferred income

Total liabilities as per consolidated statement
of financial position

As at June 30, 2025 - Audited
Segment assets for reportable segments
Unallocated corporate assets

Total assets as per consolidated statement
of financial position

Segment liabilities for reportable segments
Unallocated corporate liabilities and deferred income

Total liabilities as per consolidated statement
of financial position

operation
Total
Cotton Ener Hadeed (Billet
Steel segment 9y 1ID segment Subtotal (Billet)
segment segment segment
(Rupees in '000)
5,928,257 270,724 461,505 4,135,643 10,796,129 93,215 10,889,344
1,082,935
11,972,279
1,504,897 75,754 78,045 105,780 1,764,476 91,126 1,855,602
1,035,076
2,890,678
9,284,478 310,514 487,405 3,540,293 13,622,690 450,949 14,073,639
1,577,387
15,651,026
4,129,584 89,724 78,610 18,184 4,316,102 90,124 4,406,226
2,837,468

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to reportable segments other than those directly relating to corporate and taxation assets; and

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than those directly relating to corporate and taxation.

7,243,694

Cash and bank balances, borrowings and related mark-up receivable therefrom and payable thereon, respectively are not allocated to reporting segments as these
are managed by the Group's central treasury function.

Other segment information

Continuing operations

Discontinued

For the six months period ended
December 31, 2025
Capital expenditure

Depreciation and amortization

Non-cash items other than
depreciation and amortization

For the six months period ended
December 31, 2024
Capital expenditure

Depreciation and amortization

Non-cash items other than depreciation and
amortization

operation
Cott E Hadeed (Billet Total
Steel segment on nergy 1ID segment Subtotal eed (Billet)
segment segment segment
(Rupees in '000)
117,656 - - - 117,656 - 117,656
117,549 3,741 29,856 3,374 154,520 93 154,613
144,978 (5,545) 24 (703,039) (563,582) (69,336) (632,918)
302,060 3,180 5,091 - 310,331 - 310,331
82,567 5,290 29,859 2,187 119,903 12,817 132,720
203,186 1,502 1 227,817 432,506 98 432,604
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26.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise of associates, directors, companies where directors also hold directorship, related group companies, key management personnel and staff
retirement benefit funds. All transactions with parties are under agreed terms / contractual arrangements. Transactions between the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note.

Transactions with related parties other than those disclosed elsewhere are as follows:

Name of entity

Shakarganj Limited

Shakarganj Food Products Limited

The Crescent Textile Mills Limited

The Citizens' Foundation®

Pakistan Centre For Philanthropy*

Premier Insurance Limited*

Pak Electron Limited*

Pak-Qatar Asset Management
Company Limited*

Pak-Qatar Asset Allocation Plan*

Pak Qatar Family Takaful Limited*

Jubilee General Insurance Limited*

Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited*

Nature of relationship

Associated company

Related party

Related party

Related party

Related party

Related party

Related party

Related party

Related party

Related party

Related party

Related party

Nature of transaction

Services rendered
Reimbursable expenses
Payment made / received
Dividend paid

Payment received

Services rendered

Rent income

Reimburseable expenses
Investment made in commodity
Investment realized from commaodity
Profit received

Profit earned

Payment received
Reimburseable expense
Rent income

Services rendered
Dividend paid

Donation given

Annual membership fee
Payment annual membership fee

Insurance premium
Insurance premium paid
Dividend paid

Sale of goods

Payment received

Sale of investment
Purchase of investment

Investment made
Investment redeemed
Dividend paid
Dividend received

Principal of Sukuk repaid
Profit on Sukuk paid
Dividend paid

Payment made on behalf of CSAP
Payment made for contribution

Insurance premium
Insurance premium paid

Annual Charges
Annual Charges paid

Unaudited
Six months period ended

December 31, December 31,
2025 2024
---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------

522 4,425
4,259 38
2,836 1,226

450 630
2,000 2,500
1,310 1,904
1,123 1,363
1,603 1,817

150,000 -
150,000 -
14,684 -
14,684 -
1,682 2,653

470 -

827 1,182

- 1,040

21,346 29,884
53,702 2,880

396 396

396 396
5,057 4,318
4,931 4,546

354 495

30,281 45,610
28,962 63,310

- 1,253

- 1,239

- 350,694

35 470,069

- 27,038

- 593

36,667 20,000
2,590 7,139
11,250 -
38,663 36,963
38,663 36,963
7,314 7,104
7,314 7,104
1,861 1,223
1,861 1,223
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Continued ... Note 26: TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Name of entity

Nature of relationship

Nature of transaction

Unaudited
Six months period ended

December 31, December 31,

2025 2024
---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
Trustees Shakarganj Mills Limited Related party Dividend Paid 421 590
Provident Fund
Trustees Shakarganj Mills Limited Related party Dividend Paid 168 234
Gratuity Fund
Trustees Shakarganj Mills Limited Related party Dividend Paid 280 392
Pension Fund
International Steels Limited* Related party Dividend income 370 600
Dividend received 370 600
The Organic Meat Company Limited* Related party Purchase of investment - 2,665
Sale of investment - 3,570
Meezan Bank Limited* Related party Dividend income 4,467 3,174
Dividend received 4,467 3,174
CSAP - Staff Benevolent Fund Staff Welfare Fund Contribution made 5 624
Dividend paid 1,445 127
Crescent Cotton Products - Staff Retirement benefit fund Contribution made - 956
Provident Fund
Crescent Steel and Allied Products Retirement benefit fund Contribution made 7,571 6,093
Limited - Gratuity Fund Dividend paid 6,780 6,784
Crescent Steel and Allied Products Retirement benefit fund Contribution made 16,978 14,371
Limited - Pension Fund Dividend paid 14,038 14,135
Crescent Steel and Allied Products Retirement benefit fund Contribution made 10,498 8,112
Limited - Staff Provident Fund Dividend paid 311 435
Crescent Hadeed (Private) Retirement Contribution made - 164
Limited - Staff Provident Fund benefit fund
Key management personnel Related parties Remuneration and benefits 148,398 136,311
Dividend paid 8,030 16,871
Chairman of the Board Related party Honorarium 1,200 1,200
Directors Related parties Meeting fee 2,060 1,845
Dividend paid 7,289 13,593
* These entities are / have been related parties of the Group by virtue of common directorship only.
26.1 Contributions to the employee retirement benefit funds are made in accordance with the terms of employee retirement benefit schemes and actuarial advice.
26.2 Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group, including

directors of the Group. There were no transactions with the key management personnel during the period other than under their terms of employment /
entitlements.

26.3 Balances with related parties are disclosed in the respective receivable and payable notes in these condensed interim consolidated financial statements.
27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's financial risk management objectives and policies are consistent with those disclosed in annual consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended June
30, 2025.

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1 : Fair value measurements using quoted (unadjusted) in active markets for identical asset or liability.

Level 2 : Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 : Fair value measurements using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).
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The table below analyses financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting period by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is

categorised:

On-balance sheet
financial instruments

Financial assets

measured at fair value
Investment

- Listed equity securities

- Unlisted equity securities

Financial assets not
measured at fair value

Deposits

Trade debts

Short term investments

Other receivables

Bank balances

Financial liabilities not
measured at fair value

Long term loans

Lease liabilities

Trade and other payables

Mark-up accrued

Short term borrowings

Unclaimed dividend

On-balance sheet
financial instruments

Financial assets

measured at fair value
Investment

- Listed equity securities

- Unlisted equity securities

Financial assets not
measured at fair value

Deposits

Trade debts

Short term investments

Other receivables

Bank balances

Cash

Financial liabilities not
measured at fair value

Long term loan

Lease liabilities

Trade and other payable

Unclaimed dividend

Mark-up accrued

Short term borrowings

December 31, 2025 (Unaudited)

Carrying amount Fair value
Fair value Fair value Amortized Financial Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
through through other cost liabilities-
profit or comprehensive Amortized
loss income cost
(Rupees in '000)
3,565,250 249,754 - - 3,815,004 3,815,004 - - 3,815,004
763,620 - - - 763,620 - - 763,620 763,620
4,328,870 249,754 - - 4,578,624 3,815,004 - 763,620 4,578,624
- - 82,457 - 82,457 - - - -
- - 1,163,535 - 1,163,535 - - - -
- - 244,000 - 244,000 - - - -
- - 436,857 - 436,857 - - - -
- - 54,722 - 54,722 - - - -
- - 1,981,571 - 1,981,571 - - - -
- - - 22,086 22,086 - - - -
- - - 178,396 178,396 - - - -
- - - 829,628 829,628 - - - -
- - - 7,644 7,644 - - - -
- - - 229,710 229,710 - - - -
- - - 150,729 150,729 - - - -
- - - 1,267,464 1,418,193 - - - -
June 30, 2025 (Audited)
Carrying amount Fair value
Fair value Fair value Amortized Financial Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
through through other cost liabilities-
profit or comprehensive Amortized
loss income cost
(Rupees in '000)
2,248,852 204,192 - - 2,453,044 2,453,044 - - 2,453,044
734,380 - - - 734,380 - - 734,380 734,380
2,983,232 204,192 - - 3,187,424 2,453,044 - 734,380 3,187,424
- - 80,737 - 80,737 - - - -
- - 1,641,032 - 1,641,032 - - - -
- - 237,000 - 237,000 - - - -
- - 2,454,775 - 2,454,775 - - - -
- - 78,319 - 78,319 - - - -
- - 4,491,863 - 4,491,863 - - - -
- - - 306,758 306,758 - - - -
- - - 202,508 202,508 - - - -
- - - 1,216,154 1,216,154 - - - -
- - - 111,697 111,697 - - - -
- - - 27,284 27,284 - - - -
- - - 1,974,038 1,974,038 - - - -
- - - 3,838,439 3,838,439 - - - -
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The Group has not disclosed the fair values for all other financial assets and financial liabilities, as these are either short term in nature or reprice periodically. Therefore, their
carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value.

The fair value of listed securities were taken from rates quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange and classified under level 1 in fair value hierarchy.

Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 3 fair values at December 31, 2025 for unquoted equity investment measured at fair value in the
statement of financial position, as well as the significant unobservable inputs used.

Name of investee Valuation technique Significant unobservable Inter-relationship between significant unobservable inputs
company inputs and fair value measurement
- Shakarganj Food Products Limited - Discounted free cash flows - Expected free cash flows The estimated fair value would increase / (decrease) if:
with terminal growth:
The valution model - Terminal growth rate - The expected free cash flows were higher / (lower)
considers the present
value of expected free - Weighted Average Cost - The terminal growth rate were higher / (lower)
cash flows, discounted of Capital
using Weighted Average - The Weighted Average Cost of Capital were lower /
Cost of Capital. (higher)
- Central Depository Company of - Dividend growth model: - Dividend growth rate The estimated fair value would increase / (decrease) if:
Pakistan Limited The valuation model
considers the present - Weighted Average Cost - The dividend growth rate were higher/(lower)
value of future dividends, of Capital
discounted using Weighted - The Weighted Average Cost of Capital were lower /
Average Cost of Capital. (higher)

Level 3 fair values
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for Level 3 fair values

(Rupees in
Balance at July 1, 2025
- Shakarganj Food Products Limited 417,979
- Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 316,401
734,380
Fair value recognized during the period
- Shakarganj Food Products Limited (66,613)
- Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 95,853
Balance at December 31, 2025
- Shakarganj Food Products Limited 351,366
- Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 412,254
763,620

Sensitivity Analysis

For the fair value of unquoted equity investment, reasonably possible changes at December 31, 2025 to one of the significant unobservable inputs, holding other inputs constant,
would have the following effects.

Profit or loss

Increase Decrease
----- Rupees in '000 -----
- Expected cash flows (10% movement) 41,709 (41,709)
- Terminal growth rate (100 bps) 18,755 (16,353)
- Weighted Average Cost of Capital (100 bps) (25,676) 29,459
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
- Dividend growth rate (100 bps) 34,676 (27,694)
- Weighted Average Cost of Capital (100 bps) (25,494) 31,926
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28. SHARIAH COMPLIANCE DISCLOSURE

Shariah Compliant Disclosures Non- Shariah
Note shariah . Total
. compliant
compliant
As at December 31,2025 e (Rupees in '000)--------------
Statement of financial position
Long term loans 14 22,086 - 22,086
Lease liabilities 178,396 - 178,396
Short term borrowings 16 229,710 - 229,710
Long term investments 7 1,013,374 - 1,013,374
Short term investments 1 1,127,292 2,437,958 3,565,250
Cash and bank balances 53,576 1,146 54,722

For the six months period ended December 31, 2025
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Sales 18 - 3,712,342 3,712,342
Dividend income 19.1 35,759 60,022 95,781
Realized gain on sale of investments 19.2 17,153 56,501 73,654
Unrealized gain on sale of investment 19.3 45,529 473,283 518,812
Investment in commodities 19 14,684 - 14,684
Return on deposits 11,958 - 11,958
Finance costs 21 93,010 - 93,010

As at June 30, 2025
Statement of financial position

Long term loans 14 173,942 132,816 306,758
Lease liabilities 202,508 - 202,508
Short term borrowings 16 1,826,198 147,840 1,974,038
Other long term investments 7 734,380 204,192 938,572
Short term investments 11 831,498 1,654,354 2,485,852
Cash and bank balances 75,299 3,020 78,319

For the six months period ended December 31, 2024
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Sales 18 - 3,143,234 3,143,234
Dividend income 19.1 404,142 29,791 433,933
Realized gain on sale of investments 19.2 6,236 29,315 35,551
Unrealized gain on sale of investment 19.3 238,825 98,121 336,946
Return on deposits 15,164 - 15,164
Finance costs 21 126,424 30,137 156,561

29. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These condensed interim consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue in the Board of Directors meeting held on February 4, 2026.

T Nuanapalion Navutey %

Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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